
City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 3/26/2021 2:40 PM  

 

AGENDA 

CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 
Thursday, April 1, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Mick Routh 

 Commissioners Courtney Christiansen 

  Ed Newman 

  

 

Susan Westman 

Peter Wilk 

   

NOTICE OF REMOTE ACCESS ONLY:  
 
In accordance with the current Order from Santa Cruz County Health Services and Executive 
Order regarding social distancing, the Planning Commission meeting will not be physically open 
to the public and in person attendance cannot be accommodated. 
 
To watch: 

1. Online http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx 
2. Spectrum Cable Television channel 8 
3. Zoom Meeting (link and phone numbers below) 

 
To participate remotely and make public comment:  

1. Send email:  
a. As always, send additional materials to the Planning Commission via 

planningcommission@ci.capitola.ca.us by 5 p.m. the Wednesday before the 
meeting and they will be distributed to agenda recipients.  

b. During the meeting, send comments via email to 
publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us    
▪ Identify the item you wish to comment on in your email’s subject line. Emailed 

comments will be accepted during the Public Comments meeting item and for 
General Government / Public Hearing items.  

▪ Emailed comments on each General Government/ Public Hearing item will be 
accepted after the start of the meeting until the Chairman announces that 
public comment for that item is closed. 

▪ Emailed comments should be a maximum of 450 words, which corresponds 
to approximately 3 minutes of speaking time. 

▪ Each emailed comment will be read aloud for up to three minutes and/or 
displayed on a screen. 

▪ Emails received by publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us outside of the comment 
period outlined above will not be included in the record. 

 
2. Zoom Meeting (Via Computer or Phone) 

a. Please click the link below to join the meeting: 
▪ https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84957611096?pwd=ZG1qMVcxeldyTnJ6c2x1T3p

2cFl4Zz09 (link is external)  
▪ If prompted for a password, enter 060975 
▪ Use participant option to “raise hand” during the public comment period for 

the item you wish to speak on. Once unmuted, you will have up to 3 minutes 
to speak 

b. Dial in with phone: 

http://capitolaca.iqm2.com/Citizens/Default.aspx
mailto:planningcommission@ci.capitola.ca.us
mailto:publiccomment@ci.capitola.ca.us
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84957611096?pwd=ZG1qMVcxeldyTnJ6c2x1T3p2cFl4Zz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84957611096?pwd=ZG1qMVcxeldyTnJ6c2x1T3p2cFl4Zz09


CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – April 1, 2021 2 
 

▪ Before the start of the item you wish to comment on, call any of the numbers 
below. If one is busy, try the next one 

▪ 1 669 900 6833 
▪ 1 408 638 0968 
▪ 1 346 248 7799 
▪ 1 253 215 8782 
▪ 1 301 715 8592 
▪ 1 312 626 6799 
▪ 1 646 876 9923 
▪ Enter the meeting ID number: 849 5761 1096 
▪ When prompted for a Participant ID, press # 
▪ Press *6 on your phone to “raise your hand” when the Chairman calls for 

public comment. It will be your turn to speak when the Chairman unmutes 
you. You will hear an announcement that you have been unmuted. The timer 
will then be set to 3 minutes. 

 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – April 1, 2021 3 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION - 7 PM 
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Planning 
Commission Meeting will be distributed to Commissioners to review prior to the meeting.  
Information submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach 
Commissioners, nor be read by them prior to consideration of an item. 
 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission Agenda shall 
be considered as Public Hearings. 

 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - Mar 4, 2021 7:00 PM 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 
separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 

 
A. 1400 47th Avenue   #21-0038   APN: 034-064-20 

Design Permit for a second-story addition to a nonconforming single-family residence 
located within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption  
Property Owner: Steven Thompson  
Representative: Stephen Thompson, Filed: 02.04.2021 

 
B. 4850 Topaz Street   #20-0501   APN: 034-066-06 

Design Permit for a remodel of an existing three-story single-family residence, 
including the conversion of third-story conditioned space into deck, located within 
the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Rod Sockolov 
Representative: Kim Carpenter, Filed: 12.02.20 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – April 1, 2021 4 
 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a 
Public Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) 
Planning Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission 
Discussion; and 6) Decision. 

 
A. 307 McCormick Avenue  #20-0475   APN: 036-091-04 

Design Permit for first- and second-story additions with a Variance request for 
the required parking space dimensions and side setbacks for an existing single-
family residence located within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit 
which is not appealable to the California Coastal Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Thomas Rathjens 
Representative: Dennis Norton, Filed: 11.20.2020 

 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – April 1, 2021 5 
 

 

APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council 

within the (10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, 

Variance, and Coastal Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural 

and Site Review Design Permit can be appealed to the City Council within the (10) working days following 

the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is 

extended to the next business day. 
 

All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 

considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 

accompanied by a five hundred dollar ($500) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that is 

appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 

Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else 

raised at the public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City 

at, or prior to, the public hearing. 
 

Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 

1st Thursday of each month at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 

Capitola. 
 

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda 

Packet are available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.cityofcapitola.org.  Need more 

information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public 

record under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of 

the Planning Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning 

Commission more than 72 hours prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall 

located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, during normal business hours. 
 

Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with 

a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 

1990.  Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in 

the City Council Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 

due to a disability, please contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance 

of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental 

sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 

Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications 

Cable TV Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed on the following Monday and Friday at 1:00 p.m. on 

Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25.  Meetings can also be viewed from the City's website:  

www.cityofcapitola.org. 

 

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/


City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 3/26/2021 1:17 PM  

FINAL MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Thursday, March 4, 2021 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Chair Routh called the meeting to order at 7 P.M.  Commissioners Christiansen, Newman, 
Westman, Wilk, and Chair Routh were present remotely.   

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
Item 4c was pulled from the agenda.  Director Herlihy informed the Commission that 
temporary uses are approved administratively under the new code. 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 
Commissioner Newman stated he would like to have a discussion on the issue of 
compliance with Capitola’s sign ordinance.  Chair Routh stated they can discuss the matter 
on item 6 as a commissioner comment. 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOTION:  Approve January 21, 2021 and February 4, 2021 minutes. 

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Peter Wilk 

SECONDER: Ed Newman 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Susan Westman, Peter Wilk, Mick 

Routh 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 205 El Salto Drive   #20-0506   APN: 036-131-19 
Design Permit for first- and second-story additions and a new basement for an existing 
nonconforming single-family residence with variances for the required parking space 
dimensions, landscape strip in the front setback, and to exceed the nonconforming 
structural alteration limit located within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal Development Permit which is 
appealable to the California Coastal Commission after all possible appeals are exhausted 
through the City.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption  
Property Owner: Kim & Kevin Menninger  
Representative: Kim & Kevin Menninger, Filed: 12.08.2020 
 
Associate Planner Orbach presented the staff report. 
 

3.A

Packet Pg. 6

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 2 
 

Commissioner Wilk asked if a tree shown on the last slide of the presentation will remain.  
Associate Planner Orbach stated that a tree was removed from the rear lot a year ago and 
another tree was replanted.  No trees will be removed because of this project.   
 
Commissioner Newman sought confirmation from staff that the addition will not increase 
the nonconforming aspects of the home, and that it will comply with the new ordinance.  
Associate Planner Orbach stated that is correct. 

 
Commissioner Newman asked staff who was responsible for placing “No Parking” signs in 
front of the house.  Associate Planner Orbach answered that he was unaware of these 
signs in front of the residence.   

 
Kevin Menninger, the applicant, stated the “No Parking” signs belonged to his neighbor, 
and it is common for residents in the area to place such signs in front of their homes.   
 
Commissioner Newman stated that the proposed parking spaces are problematic because 
the spaces are small.  Given the lack of available parking in the area, he would like to add a 
condition that “No Parking” signs shall not be installed in front of the property.   

 
Commissioner Westman concurred with Commissioner Newman.  She also noted her 
concern in granting variances that do not improve the community.  She believes parking will 
become a greater issue as more ADUs are built, and would like the Commission to exercise 
caution in allowing exceptions to the recently adopted zoning ordinance. 
 
Chair Routh stated it may be prudent to consider abandoning unused right of ways to 
prevent future variance requests. 
 
Commissioner Christiansen stated that a color and materials board would be helpful in 
gaining a better idea of the proposed design, and she prefers its inclusion in the 
presentation.  Commissioners Newman and Westman concurred with Commissioner 
Christiansen that staff should require applicants to submit a “Color and Materials Board” for 
future project applications.   
 
MOTION:  Approve the design permit with the variance, and the coastal development 
permit with the following conditions and findings. 
 

CONDITIONS  
1. The project approval consists of the construction first- and second-story additions and a 

new basement for an existing nonconforming single-family residence.  The approval 
includes variances for substandard parking space dimensions, no landscape strip in the 
front setback, and to exceed the nonconforming structural alteration limit. The total FAR 
of the project is 54% with a total of 1,321 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR 
within the zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on March 4, 2021, except as 
modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission. All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  

3.A

Packet Pg. 7

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 3 
 

 
4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 

shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans. All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.  

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department. Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a landscape plan shall be submitted and approved 
by the Community Development Department. The landscape plan can be produced by 
the property owner, landscape professional, or landscape architect.  Landscape plans 
shall reflect the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, size, and location 
of species and details of any proposed (but not required) irrigation systems.  

 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #20-0506 
shall be paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, the developer shall pay Affordable housing in-lieu 
fees as required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) 
Housing Ordinance.  

 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  

 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works. The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  

 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work. No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 

 

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

3.A

Packet Pg. 8

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 4 
 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department. All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

 

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code §17.81.160. 
 

18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  
 

20. Prior to issuance of building permits, the building plans must show that the existing 
overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole. 
 

21. ‘No parking’ signs shall be prohibited at the front of the property and in the public right-
of-way in front of the property.    

 
DESIGN PERMIT FINDINGS 
A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed first- and second-
story additions and a new basement for an existing nonconforming single-family 
residence comply with the development standards of the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) 
District.  The project secures the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and 
Local Coastal Plan 
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for first- and second-story 
additions and a new basement for an existing nonconforming single-family residence.  
The design of the home with a mix of horizontal and shingle siding and the second-story 
massing located at the rear of the existing nonconforming single-family residence will fit 
in nicely with the existing neighborhood. The project will maintain the character and 
integrity of the neighborhood.   

 
VARIANCE FINDINGS 

3.A

Packet Pg. 9

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 5 
 

A. Special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, exist on the site and the strict application 
of this title is found to deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification; 
The subject property is relatively small by Capitola standards (2,439 square feet) with a 
narrow street frontage (30 feet), while the average front property width on Depot Hill is 
40 feet.  Due to the property size and the width along the street frontage, the strict 
application of the parking standards and landscaping requirement would deprive the 
subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under 
identical zone classification.   
 
The nonconforming structure, while not itself historic, was built in 1947 in a location that 
was previously occupied by a similarly sized outbuilding since at least 1905 and is 
located within a potential Depot Hill Historic District.  The small size of the structure (675 
square feet) is consistent with other structures in the neighborhood built around the 
same time period, but it would limit the size of an addition which complies with the 
nonconforming structural alteration limit to well below the maximum floor area for the lot 
size.  Therefore, the strict application of the nonconforming structural alteration limit 
would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity 
and under identical zone classification. 
 

B. The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which subject property is situated. 
The majority of properties on the block have either no onsite parking or substandard 
onsite parking and do not provide two feet of landscaping between required parking 
spaces in the front setback and the side lot line.  Therefore, the approval of a variance 
for the parking standards and landscaping requirement would not be a grant of special 
privilege inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which the property the property is situated. 
 
The majority of structures in the neighborhood built around the same time period are 
small and do not comply with required front or side setbacks and many of these 
properties have received variances to exceed the nonconforming structural alteration 
limit.  Therefore, the approval of a variance for the nonconforming structural alteration 
limit would not be a grant of special privilege inconsistent with the limitation upon other 
properties in the vicinity and zone in which the property the property is situated. 

 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FINDINGS 
A. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15332 of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts projects characterized as in-fill 
development when the project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation 
and all applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and 
regulations; the proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no 
more than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses; the project site has no 
value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; the project would not result 
in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and the site 
can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. This project 
involves first- and second-story additions and a new basement for an existing home 
within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district. The proposed project is 
consistent with the in-fill development exemption and no adverse environmental impacts 

3.A

Packet Pg. 10

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 6 
 

were discovered during review of the proposed project.   
 

COASTAL FINDINGS 
A. Findings Required.  
1. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written factual 

findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to 
the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
a. A statement of the individual and cumulative burdens imposed on public access and 

recreation opportunities based on applicable factors identified pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2) of this section. The type of affected public access and recreation opportunities 
shall be clearly described; 

b. An analysis based on applicable factors identified in subsection (D)(2) of this section 
of the necessity for requiring public access conditions to find the project consistent 
with the public access provisions of the Coastal Act; 

c. A description of the legitimate governmental interest furthered by any access 
conditioned required; 

d. An explanation of how imposition of an access dedication requirement alleviates the 
access burdens identified. 

 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan 
(LCP). The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090(D) are as 
follows: 

 
2. Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 

access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate 
and document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D)(2)(a) 
through (e), to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the 
conclusions and decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial 
evidence in the record. If an access dedication is required as a condition of 
approval, the findings shall explain how the adverse effects which have been 
identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the dedication. As used in this section, 
“cumulative effect” means the effect of the individual project in combination with 
the effects of past projects, other current projects, and probable future projects, 
including development allowed under applicable planning and zoning. 
a. Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of existing and 

open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the regional and 
local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon existing public 
access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s cumulative effects upon 
the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation opportunities, including 
public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity of major coastal roads 
from subdivision, intensification or cumulative buildout. Projection for the anticipated 
demand and need for increased coastal access and recreation opportunities for the 
public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s cumulative effects to any such 
projected increase. Description of the physical characteristics of the site and its 
proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland recreation areas, and trail 
linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the importance and potential of 
the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for creating, preserving or 
enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation opportunities; 

 

• The proposed project is located at 205 El Salto Drive. The home is not located in 
an area with coastal access. The home will not have an effect on public trails or 
beach access. 

 

3.A

Packet Pg. 11

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 7 
 

b. Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, including 
beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or accretion, 
character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of shoreline 
protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season when 
the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description 
and analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and 
cumulative effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in 
the vicinity of the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility 
and usability of the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect 
beaches in the vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, 
alone or in combination with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of 
the public to use public tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 

 

• The proposed project is located along El Salto Drive. No portion of the project is 
located along the shoreline or beach. 

 
c. Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general public for 

a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the type and 
character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for passive 
and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) who has 
maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the nature of 
the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the record 
owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner to 
prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 
proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use); 

 

• There is not a history of public use on the subject lot. 
 

d. Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 
which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public 
recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the shoreline; 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property on El Salto Drive. The project 
will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, 
public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
e. Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the development’s 

physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public recreation area. 
Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other aspects of the 
development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the public’s use of 
tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any alteration of the 
aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any diminution of 
the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be attributable to 
the individual or cumulative effects of the development. 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access 
and recreation. The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or 

3.A

Packet Pg. 12

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 8 
 

lands committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual, or recreational 
value of public use areas. 

 
3. Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that one of 

the exceptions of subsection (F)(2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the 
following: 
a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, 

lateral, bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be 
protected, the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which 
is the basis for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an accessway on the subject land. 

 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings 
do not apply. 

 
4. Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 

condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or 
character of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 
a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 

supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 

• The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas. 
 

b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 
 

• The project is located on a flat lot. 
 

c. Recreational needs of the public; 
 

• The project does not impact the recreational needs of the public. 
 

d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of 
a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
5. Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 

appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and 
as, required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 

 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the proposed 
project. 

 
6. Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies; 

3.A

Packet Pg. 13

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 9 
 

 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational 
facilities designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall 
have priority over private residential, general industrial, or general commercial 
development, but not over agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

• The project involves first- and second-story additions and a new basement on a 
residential lot of record. 

 
SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for 
such uses, where feasible. 

 

• The project involves first- and second-story additions and a new basement on a 
residential lot of record. 

 
c) Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed 
areas shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of 
attraction for visitors. 
 

• The project involves first- and second-story additions and a new basement on a 
residential lot of record. 

 
7. Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 

public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation 
and/or traffic improvements; 

 

• The project involves the construction of first- and second-story additions and a new 
basement. The project complies with applicable standards and requirements for 
provision for parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation, and/or 
traffic improvements. 

 
8. Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 

city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted 
design guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 

 

• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code. 

 
9. Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 

protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public 
views to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views. The 
project will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline. 

 
10. Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 

 

• The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer 
services. 

 

3.A

Packet Pg. 14

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 10 
 

11. Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times; 
 

• The project is located 0.4 miles from the Central Fire Protection District Capitola 
Station. Water is available at the location. 

 
12. Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 

 

• The project is for first- and second-story additions and a new basement. The GHG 
emissions for the project are projected at less than significant impact. All water 
fixtures must comply with the low-flow standards of the Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
13. Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required; 

 

• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 

14. Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes. 
 

15. Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies; 

 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established 
policies. 

 
16. Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where 
Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 

 
17. Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 

stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable 
erosion control measures. 

 
18. Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 

projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and 
project complies with hazard protection policies including provision of 
appropriate setbacks and mitigation measures; 

 

• Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 
project. Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant 
shall comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the 
California Building Standards Code. 

 
19. All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in the 

project design; 
 

3.A

Packet Pg. 15

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 11 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with 
geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in the 
project design. 

 
20. Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 

 

• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
 

21. The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 

 

• This use is an allowed use consistent with the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district. 

 
22. Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 

and project review procedures; and 
 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project development review and development procedures. 

 
23. Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows: 

a. The village area preferential parking program areas and conditions as established in 
Resolution No. 2596 and no permit parking of any kind shall be allowed on Capitola 
Avenue. 

b. The neighborhood preferential parking program areas are as established in 
Resolution Numbers 2433 and 2510. 

c. The village area preferential parking program shall be limited to three hundred fifty 
permits. 

d. Neighborhood permit areas are only in force when the shuttle bus is operating except 
that: 
i. The Fanmar area (Resolution No. 2436) program may operate year-round, 

twenty-four hours a day on weekends, 
ii. The Burlingame, Cliff Avenue/Grand Avenue area (Resolution No. 2435) have 

year-round, twenty-four hour per day “no public parking.” 
e. Except as specifically allowed under the village parking program, no preferential 

residential parking may be allowed in the Cliff Drive parking areas. 
f. Six Depot Hill twenty-four minute “Vista” parking spaces (Resolution No. 2510) shall 

be provided as corrected in Exhibit A attached to the ordinance codified in this 
section and found on file in the office of the city clerk. 

g. A limit of fifty permits for the Pacific Cove parking lot may be issued to village permit 
holders and transient occupancy permit holders. 

h. No additional development in the village that intensifies use and requires additional 
parking shall be permitted. Changes in use that do not result in additional parking 
demand can be allowed and exceptions for onsite parking as allowed in the 
land use plan can be made. 

 

• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit 
program. 

 

3.A

Packet Pg. 16

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 12 
 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Susan Westman 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Ed Newman, Susan Westman, Peter Wilk, Mick 

Routh 

 
B. 201 Capitola Avenue   #20-0444   APN: 035-231-09 

Design Permit and Conditional Use Permit Amendments for a new 
entryway, windows, and an awning for an historic commercial structure located 
within the C-V (Central Village) zoning district.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption  
Property Owner: Rick Avia  
Representative: Frank Phanton, Architect, Filed: 10.28.2020  
 
Commissioners Newman and Wilk recused themselves due to proximity.  
 
Associate Planner Orbach presented the staff report. 

 
Commissioner Westman requested clarification on the plans.  Associate Planner Orbach 
provided information regarding the awning’s design and colors.   

 
Commissioner Christiansen stated that she would like more depth in the applicant’s design.  
Associate Planner Orbach stated additional details that were approved by the historian 
were included in the conditions of approval and on the plan set. 

 
Frank Phanton, representative of the project, confirmed additional design details.     
 
MOTION: Approve the design permit and conditional use permit with the following 
conditions and findings.   

CONDITIONS 

1. The project approval consists of design permit and conditional use permit amendments 
for a new entryway, windows, and an awning for an historic commercial structure.  The 
maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 5,140-square-foot property is 2.0 (10,280 square 
feet). The total FAR of the project is 0.93 with a total of 4,796 square feet, compliant with 
the maximum FAR within the zone. The proposed project is approved as indicated on 
the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on March 4, 2021, 
except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission during the 
hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission. All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

3.A

Packet Pg. 17

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 13 
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans. All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.  

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department. Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  

 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #20-0444 
shall be paid in full. 
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, the developer shall pay Affordable housing in-lieu 
fees as required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) 
Housing Ordinance.  

 

8. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  

 

9. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works. The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

11. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  

 

12. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work. No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 

 

13. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

14. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department. All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

 

15. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 

3.A

Packet Pg. 18

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 14 
 

Director. Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

16. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

17. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

18. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  

 

19. At time of building plan submittal, the plans shall include language on the cover sheet 
referring to the property as an "Historic Resource", requiring review of all design 
revisions, and that the project should include notes that the existing historic elements are 
to be protected during construction. 

  
20. New commercial display windows, transom windows, and entrance doors shall have 

anodized aluminum frames. 
 

21. New commercial display windows and transom windows shall be sized so that they have 
bullnose stucco on both sides as well as at the top. 

 
22. Exterior display-window sills and aprons shall be traditional forms of wood or of anodized 

aluminum, or the stucco bullnose shall wrap the base of the window frames. 
 

23. Note for windows to “match existing” shall apply only to the upstairs windows, not to the 
display windows. 

 
24. Material of the apartment door shall be differentiated from the historic building. 

 
25. New awning above the apartment door shall be differentiated from the recent awnings 

used on the historic building (e.g., by matching the color and/or the form of the awning at 
the storefront at 121 San Jose Avenue). 
 

26. Prior to Planning final, existing awnings adjacent to San Jose Avenue and Capitola 
Avenue that were painted over shall be replaced in kind.   

 
DESIGN PERMIT FINDINGS 
A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed design permit and 
conditional use permit amendments for a new entryway, windows, and an awning for an 
historic commercial structure comply with the development standards of the C-V (Central 
Village) Zoning District.  The project secures the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, 

3.A

Packet Pg. 19

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 15 
 

General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan 
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for design permit and conditional 
use permit amendments for a new entryway, windows, and an awning for an historic 
commercial structure.  The remodel, which retains the historic integrity of the building 
and adds a second new store frontage along San Jose Avenue, will fit in nicely with the 
existing neighborhood. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the 
neighborhood.   

 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FINDINGS 
A. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15331 of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15331 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts rehabilitation projects of historic 
resources in a manner consistent with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties with Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating, 
Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic buildings. The proposed project is consistent with 
the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards and no adverse environmental impacts were 
discovered by Planning Staff during the review of the proposed project. 

 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FINDINGS 
A. The action proposed will not be significantly detrimental to the historic feature in 

which the change in use is to occur. 
Architectural Historian Leslie Dill reviewed the project for compatibility with the Secretary 
of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and found that the proposed plan 
amendments comply with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation.  
The project will not be significantly detrimental to the historic feature in which the change 
in use is to occur. 

 

RESULT: APPROVED [3-0] 

MOVER: Susan Westman 

SECONDER: Courtney Christiansen 

AYES: Courtney Christiansen, Susan Westman, Mick Routh 

RECUSED: Ed Newman, Peter Wilk 

 
C. 835 Bay Avenue    #21-0017   APN: 035-381-01 

Conditional Use Permit for the storage of vehicles for the Toyota dealership 
located within the C-C (Community Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Redtree Partners LP 
Representative: Sven Davis, Filed: 01.15.2021 
 
This item was pulled from the agenda. 
 

5. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

3.A

Packet Pg. 20

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – March 4, 2021 16 
 
Director Herlihy stated that the Coastal Commission approved the zoning code update to move 
forward with few modifications.  Director Herlihy reminded the Commission that the non-
conforming and geological hazards chapters were not included in the update.  
 

6. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
Commissioner Newman requested input from the Commission regarding the City’s lack of 
enforcement of Capitola's sign ordinance.  He noticed an increase in non-compliance, 
particularly on 41st Ave.   He questioned whether the sign ordinance should exist if it is not 
enforced. 

 
Commissioner Westman concurred with Commissioner Newman, but stated that the sign 
ordinance should remain and be enforced.   

 
 

Commissioner Westman and Commissioner Wilk stated they would like a general discussion on 
code enforcement.  Chair Routh suggested the Commission conduct a study session to discuss 
these topics.   

 
Director Herlihy stated she can raise these concerns to the City Manager’s attention and 
determine whether the City Council would like a proactive approach to code enforcement.     

 
Chair Routh would like the City Manager to conduct a meeting with City Hall staff to address 
these concerns. 
 
Chair Routh added he will not be present for the next meeting. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:53 P.M. to the next regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission to April 01, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Edna Basa, Clerk to the Commission 
 

3.A

Packet Pg. 21

M
in

u
te

s 
A

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
: 

M
in

u
te

s 
o

f 
M

ar
 4

, 2
02

1 
7:

00
 P

M
  (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
M

in
u

te
s)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: APRIL 1, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: 1400 47th Avenue  #21-0038  APN: 034-064-20 
 

Design Permit for a second-story addition to a nonconforming single-family 
residence located within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.   
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption  
Property Owner: Steven Thompson  
Representative: Stephen Thompson, Filed: 02.04.2021 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing a 434-square-foot second-story addition with a 141-square-foot 
second-story balcony to a nonconforming single-family residence located at 1400 47th Avenue 
within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2010, the Planning Commission approved a 447-square-foot second-story addition with a 
143-square-foot second-story balcony under permit #10-0045.  The permit was not exercised 
within two years of the approval and expired in 2012.    
 
On March 10, 2021, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application and 
provided the applicant with the following direction:  
 
Public Works Representative, Danielle Uharriet: informed the applicant of the public works and 
stormwater standard conditions of approval for the project. 
 
Building Official, Robin Woodman: discussed the first-story bedroom and informed the applicant 
that smoke detectors would be required in that room.   
 
Local Architect, Frank Phanton: provided positive feedback on the project design. 
 
Associate Planner, Matt Orbach: had no comments. 
  
Following the Architecture & Site Review Committee meeting, the applicant did not make any 
modifications to the plan set.   
 
Development Standards 

4.A

Packet Pg. 22



 
 

 

The following table outlines the zoning code requirements for development in the R-1 Zoning 
District.  The addition complies with all development standards of the R-1 zoning district. 
 

R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District 
 

Development Standards 

Building Height 

R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed 

25 ft. 13 ft. 3 in. 22 ft. 3 in. 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

 Existing Proposed 

Lot Size 3,360 sq. ft. 3,360 sq. ft. 

Maximum Floor Area 
Ratio 

56% (Max 1,882 sq. ft.) 56% (Max 1,882 sq. 
ft.) 

First Story Floor Area 1,295 sq. ft. 1,295 sq. ft. 

Second Story Floor Area N/A 434 sq. ft. 

Deck/Covered Ext. Space 54 sq. ft. 195 sq. ft. 

Deck/Covered Ext. 
Exception  

-54 sq. ft. (Max 150 sq. ft.) -150 sq. ft. 

   TOTAL FAR 39% (1,295 sq. ft.) 53% (1,774 sq. ft.) 

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way) 

 R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed 

Front Yard 1st Story 15 ft. 9 ft. 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

9 ft. 
Existing 

Nonconforming 

Front Yard 2nd Story  
& Garage 

20 ft. N/A (2nd Story) 
N/A (Garage) 

35 ft. 4 in. (2nd Story) 
N/A (Garage) 

Side Yard 1st Story – 
Interior Side 

10% 
lot 

width 

Lot width: 
42 ft. 
 
4 ft. 3 in. 

7 ft. 0 in. (east)  
 
 

7 ft. 0 in. (east) 
 
 

Side Yard 1st Story – 
Exterior Side 

10 ft. 9 ft. 8 in. (west) 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

9 ft. 8 in. (west) 
Existing 

Nonconforming 

Side Yard 2nd Story – 
Interior Side 

15% 
of 

width 

Lot width: 
42 ft.  
 
6 ft. 4 in. 

N/A 
 

7 ft. 0 in. (east) 
 

Side Yard 2nd Story – 
Exterior Side 

10 ft. N/A 10 ft. 8 in. (west) 
 

Rear Yard 1st Story 4 ft. Minimum 
interior side 
setback of 
adjacent 
property or 4 
ft., whichever 
is less 
 
4 ft. 

 
13 ft. 9 in. 

 
13 ft. 9 in. 

Rear Yard 2nd Story 4 ft. Minimum N/A 16 ft. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 23



 
 

 

interior side 
setback of 
adjacent 
property or 4 
ft., whichever 
is less 
 
4 ft. 

Encroachments (list all) Existing residence encroaches into front and exterior side yard 
setbacks. 

Parking 

 Required Existing Proposed 

Residential (from 1,501 
up to 2,000 sq. ft.) 

2 spaces total 
1 covered 
1 uncovered 

1 space total 
1 covered 
0 uncovered 

2 spaces total 
1 covered 
1 uncovered 

Underground Utilities: Required with 25% increase in floor area Required 

 
DISCUSSION 
The existing residence at 1400 47th Avenue is a nonconforming, one-story, single-family 
residence.  The lot is located in the Jewel Box neighborhood and is surrounded by one- and 
two-story single-family homes.  
 
The applicant is proposing to construct a 434-square-foot second-story addition, including a new 
second story and a 141-square-foot second-story balcony.  The new second-story addition is 
located towards the back of the existing structure.  The proposed design includes a Dutch hip 
roof with composition shingles and vertical siding to match the existing first story.  The proposed 
balcony, located in the middle of the residence, has horizontal shiplap siding.   
 
Nonconforming 
The existing structure is located within the first-story front setback and the first-story side 
setback along 47th Avenue.  The existing structure does not comply with the setback regulations 
of the zoning code and therefore is a legal non-conforming structure.  Pursuant to Capitola 
Municipal Code (CMC) §17.72.070, if proposed structural alterations to an existing non-
complying structure exceed 80% of the present fair market value of the structure, the proposed 
structural alterations may not be made.  The applicant has submitted a construction cost 
breakdown demonstrating that the proposed structural alterations are 46% of the present fair 
market value of the structure, so the alterations are permissible. 
 
Parking 
Pursuant to CMC §17.51.135(B), if a structure with nonconforming parking is enlarged by more 
than ten percent of the existing gross floor area, parking requirements shall be met.  The 
existing structure requires two parking spaces, but there is only one existing covered parking 
space on the site, so the structure has nonconforming parking.  The proposed addition is 34 
percent of the existing gross floor area, so parking requirements must be met.  With the 
addition, the proposed structure requires two parking spaces, one of which must be covered.  
The applicant is proposing one additional uncovered parking space on the site, for a total of one 
covered parking space and one uncovered parking space, therefore the project complies with 
CMC §17.51.135(B). 
 
CEQA 

4.A

Packet Pg. 24



 
 

 

Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures provided that 
the addition will not result in an increase of more than 50 percent of the floor area of the 
structures before the addition, or 2,500 square feet, whichever is less.  The proposed additions 
add 434 square feet (34%) of floor area, so this exemption applies. No adverse environmental 
impacts were discovered during project review by Planning Department Staff. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission review and approve project application #21-0038 
based on the following Conditions and Findings for Approval. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of construction of a 434-square-foot second-story addition 

with a 141-square-foot second-story balcony. The maximum Floor Area Ratio for the 
3,360-square-foot property is 56% (1,882 square feet). The total FAR of the project is 
53% with a total of 1,774 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone. 
The proposed project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Commission on April 1, 2021, except as modified through conditions 
imposed by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission. All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans. All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.  

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department. Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  

 
6. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #21-0038 

shall be paid in full. 
 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, the developer shall pay Affordable housing in-lieu 
fees as required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) 
Housing Ordinance.  
 

8. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  
 

9. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works. The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 25



 
 

 

 
10. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 

management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

11. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

12. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work. No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

13. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

14. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department. All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 

 
15. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 

approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

16. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code §17.81.160. 
 

17. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

18. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  
 

19. Prior to issuance of building permits, the building plans must show that the existing 
overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole.  

 
FINDINGS 

4.A

Packet Pg. 26



 
 

 

A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project. The proposed construction of a 434-
square-foot second-story addition with a 141-square-foot second-story balcony complies 
with the development standards of the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) District.  The 
project secures the purpose of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal 
Plan 
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the construction of a 434-
square-foot second-story addition with a 141-square-foot second-story balcony.  The 
design of the home, with a Dutch hip roof with composition shingles and vertical siding to 
match the existing first story, will fit in nicely with the existing neighborhood. The project 
will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301(e) of the California    

Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures 
provided that the addition will not result in an increase of more than 50 percent of the 
floor area of the structures before the addition, or 2,500 square feet, whichever is less.  
The proposed additions add 434 square feet (34%) of floor area, so this exemption 
applies. No adverse environmental impacts were discovered during project review by 
Planning Department Staff.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 1400 47th Avenue - Full Plan Set - 03.04.2021 
2. 1400 47th Avenue - Color and Materials Information 
3. 1400 47th Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown 

 
Prepared By: Matt Orbach 
  Associate Planner 

4.A

Packet Pg. 27



Area Calculations

Existing Building Area
Garage Area: 377 sq. ft.
Floor Area: 903 sq. ft.

Total Building Area: 1,280 sq. ft.

Proposed Building Area:
Garage: 334 sq. ft.
First Story Floor Area: 946 sq. ft.
Second Story Floor Area: 435 sq. ft.
Second Story Balcony: 143 sq. ft.

Total Proposed Building Area: 1,858 sq. ft.

Net Parcel Area: 3,360 sq. ft.
Floor Area Ratio: 55.3% (1,858/3,360)
Total Habitable Floor Area: 1,386 sq. ft.
New/ Added Habitable Floor Area: 477 sq. ft.

Project Description
Construct a Second Story Addition to an existing one story single family dwelling. 
The proposed second story addition is over the current garage. 
No changes to the existing first story lot footprint.

Project Data:
Existing Bedrooms: 2
New Bedrooms: 1                 _ 
Total Proposed Bedrooms: 3

Exisitng Bathrooms: 1
New Bathrooms: 1                 _
Total Proposed Bathrooms: 2

Proposed Second Story Balcony: 1

General Project Notes
1.Current Parking: (1) Uncovered, (1) Covered (Same after addtion)
2. All matrue landscape to remain after completion of constuction

Revisions

A1

DATE

2/23/2021

T
ho

m
ps

on
 R

es
id

en
ce

14
00

 4
7t

h 
A

ve
 C

ap
ito

la
, C

A
A

P
N

:0
34

-0
64

-2
0

SHEET

S
ite

 P
la

n 
&

 V
ic

in
ity

 

Exisitng
Pavers Patio
225 sq ft

Existing Concrete & Pavers Patio
250 sq ft

S
T

E
V

E
 T

H
O

M
P

S
O

N
P

.O
. B

O
X

 9
36

 C
A

P
IT

O
L

A
, C

A
 9

50
10

83
1.

25
2.

04
57

st
ev

e@
cr

u
zc

o
u

n
ty

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
.c

o
m

Existing
8'x8' Storage Shed
On ground
No foundation

SHEET INDEX

A6

A7

A1

A8

Site & Vicinity 

Exitsing Floor 

New Addition Floor 

Existing 

New Orithographic 

Lot Survey, Site Plan

A2

A3

A4

A5

41
st

Capitola Road

Jade Street

45
th

 

47
th

 

49
th

 

Opal

Jewel

Cliff
 D

riv
e N

Vicinity 

New Elevations (East & West)

     Second Story 
Addition

(E) 2 Bedroom/ I Bath House
(No Changes to Exisitng First Level Lot Footprint)

47th Ave

O
pa

l S
tr

ee
t

(13'-9")

16'

(7')

(10')

(9'-8")
(14'-8") 10'-8"

New Elevations (North & South)

80' Property Line

42
' P

ro
pe

rt
y 

Li
ne

18
'

9'

P
ar

ki
ng

 S
pa

ce
Existing Concrete Driveway & Parking 

Scale: 1/8" = 1'
Site North

35'-4"
Second Story 

Balcony

(ONE CAR GARAGE)

(2 CAR GARAGE

APN 034-064-01

APN 034-038-13

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

F
u

ll 
P

la
n

 S
et

 -
 0

3.
04

.2
02

1 
 (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



901 sq ft

35'-11 1/2"

4'-3 1/16"5'-6"

4'

4'
-4

"

6'

8'
-9

"

57'-7"

1'-8"18'-11 1/2"6'-8"10'-4"2'-5"17'-6 1/2"

1'
-5

 1
/2

"

25
'-1

"
4'

-0
 1

/2
"

4'
-1

1"
14

'-8
"

5'
-1

"

25
'-1

"

57'-7"
19'-11 1/2" 13'-10"

3'-10 1/2"
18'-3" 1'-8"

20
'

2'8"x6'8"

LIVING AREA

6'8"x3'6" TS 2'0"x0'10" LS 3'0"x3'4" FX 2'-8"x6'8" 4'0"x4'0" LS

4'0"x4'0" R
S

8'0"x4'0" TS3'0"x6'8"

6'8"x3'0" TS

16'-0"X7'-0" GARAGE DOOR

2'-0"x3'10" SKYLIGHTS

2-
0X

2-
6

S
K

Y
LI

G
H

T

Revisions

A2

DATE

2/23/2021

T
ho

m
ps

on
 R

es
id

en
ce

14
00

 4
7t

h 
A

ve
 C

ap
ito

la
, C

A
A

P
N

:0
34

-0
64

-2
0

SHEET

E
xi

st
in

g 
F

lo
or

 

Garage

Existing Floor 
Scale: 1/4" = 1'

Bedroom #1

Bedroom #2

Kitchen

Living Room

B
at

h
ro

o
m

N

S
T

E
V

E
 T

H
O

M
P

S
O

N
P

.O
. B

O
X

 9
36

 C
A

P
IT

O
L

A
, C

A
 9

50
10

83
1.

25
2.

04
57

st
ev

e@
cr

u
zc

o
u

n
ty

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
.c

o
m

ROOF OUTLINE

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

F
u

ll 
P

la
n

 S
et

 -
 0

3.
04

.2
02

1 
 (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



UP

930 sq ft

4'

4'

3'
-1

0"

6'

5'-6"

4'

14
'-2

 1
/2

"

1'-8 1/4"18'-11 1/2"6'-8"10'-4"3'-6 1/2"16'-5"

1'
-5

 1
/2

"

25
'-1

"

4'
-0

 1
/2

"
4'

-1
1"

14
'-8

"

5'
-1

"

25
'-1

"
20

'

57'-7 1/4"

19'-11 1/2" 13'-10"
3'-10 1/2"

18'-3" 1'-8 1/4"

LIVING AREA

DN

18'-1 1/4"

24
'-0

 5
/8

"

15
'-7

 1
/8

"
8'

-5
 1

/2
"

2"
13

'-8
 1

/8
"

10
'-2

 1
/2

"

8'-3 1/2" 9'-9 3/4" 10'-4 1/2"

Revisions

A3

DATE

2/23/2021

T
ho

m
ps

on
 R

es
id

en
ce

14
00

 4
7t

h 
A

ve
 C

ap
ito

la
, C

A
A

P
N

:0
34

-0
64

-2
0

SHEET

N
ew

 A
dd

iti
on

 F
lo

or
 

Bedroom #3

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
Second Level

B A B C C

D

Scale: 1/4" = 1'

First Level

EA

F

GG

H

I

A

Symbo

NORTH

I

S
T

E
V

E
 T

H
O

M
P

S
O

N
P

.O
. B

O
X

 9
36

 C
A

P
IT

O
L

A
, C

A
 9

50
10

83
1.

25
2.

04
57

st
ev

e@
cr

u
zc

o
u

n
ty

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
.c

o
m

ALL WINDOWS & SLIDING PATIO DOOR ARE WHITE VINYL, 
DOUBLE PANE LoE GLAZING

Exterior Doors Size

ALL SKYLIGHTS, VELUX, DOUBLE PANE, LAMINATED

Notes

2-8x6-8 Half-Light

3-0x6-8 Full 

1

2-6x3-0 Right Casement

2-6x3-0 Left Casement

QTY

2-6x3-0 Single 

2-0x0-10 Left Slider

1-11x2-2 Skylight

2-6x3-9 

6-8x3-6 Triple Casement

3-0x4-0 Single 

4-0x4-0 Picture

2-0x3-4 Picture

NotesSymboWindow Size & Type

1-11x 3-1 

8-0x4-0 Triple Casement

2-6x3-0 Picture

1

1

3

Window & Door Schedule

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

I

J

K

L

M

N

C

A

B

1

1

2

3

D

E

Egress

Egress

2

1

4

J K K

K

K

L

MM

HH

Balcony
Bathroom #2Closet

Garage

Bedroom #2

Bedroom #1

B
at

h
ro

o
m

 #
1

Kitchen

Living Room

D

D

1

2

QTY

3-0x6-8

5-0x6-8 Sliding Patio 

Egress

1

1

1

1

9-0x7-0 Overhead (1) Panel Section w/GlassD

E

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

F
u

ll 
P

la
n

 S
et

 -
 0

3.
04

.2
02

1 
 (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



Revisions

A4

DATE

2/23/2021

T
ho

m
ps

on
 R

es
id

en
ce

14
00

 4
7t

h 
A

ve
 C

ap
ito

la
, C

A
A

P
N

:0
34

-0
64

-2
0

SHEET

E
xi

st
in

g 

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
West Elevation (47th Ave)

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
East Elevation

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
North Elevation

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
South Elevation (Opal Street)

Stucco Siding

Composite Shingles Roofing
       3/12 Pitch

Stucco Siding

10" Bevel Siding

S
T

E
V

E
 T

H
O

M
P

S
O

N
P

.O
. B

O
X

 9
36

 C
A

P
IT

O
L

A
, C

A
 9

50
10

83
1.

25
2.

04
57

st
ev

e@
cr

u
zc

o
u

n
ty

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
.c

o
m

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

F
u

ll 
P

la
n

 S
et

 -
 0

3.
04

.2
02

1 
 (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



Revisions

A5

DATE

2/23/2021

T
ho

m
ps

on
 R

es
id

en
ce

14
00

 4
7t

h 
A

ve
 C

ap
ito

la
, C

A
A

P
N

:0
34

-0
64

-2
0

SHEET

N
ew

 
E

le
va

tio
ns

 Existing 40 YR Asphault Comp Shingles
 Color: Weatherwood
 New addtion roofing to be the same

 Balcony Siding: IPE 1x6 Shiplap
 Color is a medium brown

Second Level: Dutch Hip Roof Style
(4 in 12 pitch)

5 Section Insulated Steel Overhead Garage Door
Flaux wood-look, Color: brown to complement IPE

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
East Elevation

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
West Elevation (47th Ave)

 1x4" Window Trim w/ Sill+Skirt Typical
 Color: Kelly Moore Swiss Coffee

Exisitng fireplace chimney chase
10" cedar bevel cedar siding to remain

(Painted same as house body color)

2"x6" Balcony Cap Rail

Existing 1st Level Roof Framing to Remain
(3 in 12 pitch)

Addition

Main Exisitng Exterior Colors to Remain the Same
Body: Kelly Moore, Landcaser White

Trim: Kelly Moore, Swiss Coffee
Roofing: Asphault Comp, Weatherwood

All roof fascia 2x6 w/ seamlees gutters
Color: Kelly Moore Swiss Coffee

S
T

E
V

E
 T

H
O

M
P

S
O

N
P

.O
. B

O
X

 9
36

 C
A

P
IT

O
L

A
, C

A
 9

50
10

83
1.

25
2.

04
57

st
ev

e@
cr

u
zc

o
u

n
ty

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
.c

o
m

Exisitng entry roof and post to remain
New IPE 1x6 shiplap siding beteen post 42" high

Siding color same as balcony

 Exterior Siding: Board and Batten Style except where noted
 Color: Kelly Moore, Landcaster White

10"x10" sq. Post

22'-3"

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

F
u

ll 
P

la
n

 S
et

 -
 0

3.
04

.2
02

1 
 (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



Revisions

A6

DATE

2/23/2021

T
ho

m
ps

on
 R

es
id

en
ce

14
00

 4
7t

h 
A

ve
 C

ap
ito

la
, C

A
A

P
N

:0
34

-0
64

-2
0

SHEET

N
ew

 E
le

va
tio

ns
 

(N
or

th
 &

 S
ou

th
)

S
T

E
V

E
 T

H
O

M
P

S
O

N
P

.O
. B

O
X

 9
36

 C
A

P
IT

O
L

A
, C

A
 9

50
10

83
1.

25
2.

04
57

st
ev

e@
cr

u
zc

o
u

n
ty

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
.c

o
m

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
North Elevation

Scale: 1/4" = 1'
South Elevation (Opal Street)

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

F
u

ll 
P

la
n

 S
et

 -
 0

3.
04

.2
02

1 
 (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



Revisions

A7

DATE

2/23/2021

T
ho

m
ps

on
 R

es
id

en
ce

14
00

 4
7t

h 
A

ve
 C

ap
ito

la
, C

A
A

P
N

:0
34

-0
64

-2
0

SHEET

N
ew

 O
rt

ho
gr

ap
hi

c 
S

T
E

V
E

 T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

P
.O

. B
O

X
 9

36
 C

A
P

IT
O

L
A

, C
A

 9
50

10
83

1.
25

2.
04

57
st

ev
e@

cr
u

zc
o

u
n

ty
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

.c
o

m

Orthographic View #1
Scale: None

47th Ave Opal Street

Scale: None
Orthographic View #2

Opal Street

47th Ave

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

F
u

ll 
P

la
n

 S
et

 -
 0

3.
04

.2
02

1 
 (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



Te
l 8

31
.4

26
.7

94
1 

  F
ax

 8
31

.4
26

.6
26

6 
53

00
 S

oq
ue

l A
ve

nu
e,

 S
ui

te
 1

01
,  

Sa
nt

a 
C

ru
z,

 C
A

  9
50

62

4.A.1

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

F
u

ll 
P

la
n

 S
et

 -
 0

3.
04

.2
02

1 
 (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



1400 47th Ave Capitola APN:034-064-20 
Color and Materials

Current house colors to remain the same after the remodel

Body: KM Landcaster White Trim: KM Swiss Coffee Roofing: Comp Shingles 
Color: Weatherwood

Second Level Balcony

IPE 1x6 Shiplap  
Horizontal Siding

House general body siding: Board and Batten Style. 
Base sheeting either T1-11 Plywood (no grooves) or Hardiepanel Siding 
Battens: 1" x 3" , 12" or 16" on center

Main Exterior Materials

Exisitng Fireplace Chimney Chase: 10" Cedar Bevel Siding

Windows: Milgard Tuscany White Vinyl, LowE Double Pane

NOTE: See Sheet A5 of the Planset for Additional Details 

4.A.2

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

C
o

lo
r 

an
d

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
  (

14
00

 4
7t

h
 A

ve
n

u
e)



Existing Building Costs:

Existing Residence: 916.00$         square feet = 183,200.00$      
200.00$         square foot

Exisiting Garage: 379.00$         square feet = 34,110.00$        
90.00$           square foot

Existing Deck: 54.00$           square feet = 1,350.00$          
25.00$           square foot

218,660.00$      

174,928.00$      

New Construction Costs:

New Conditioned Space: 478.00$         square feet = 95,600.00$        
200.00$         square foot

New Garage: -$               square feet = -$                   
90.00$           square foot

New deck/porch: 141.00$         square feet = 3,525.00$          
25.00$           square foot

99,125.00$        

Remodel Costs: (50% of "new construction" costs)

Remodel Conditioned Space: 21.00$           square feet = 2,100.00$          
100.00$         square foot

Remodel Garage: -$               square feet = -$                   
45.00$           square foot

Remodel Deck: -$               square feet = -$                   
12.50$           square foot

2,100.00$          

101,225.00$      
% of Existing Value 46.3%

Total Construction/Remodel Cost

PLANNING STAFF

Total Existing Value:

80% of Total Existing Value

Total New Construction Value:

Total Remodel Value:

CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN PER Section 17.72.070

4.A.3

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

40
0 

47
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
- 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 C
o

st
 B

re
ak

d
o

w
n

  (
14

00
 4

7t
h

 A
ve

n
u

e)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: APRIL 1, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: 4850 Topaz Street  #20-0501  APN: 034-066-06 
 

Design Permit for a remodel of an existing three-story single-family 
residence, including the conversion of third-story conditioned space 
into deck, located within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal 
Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Rod Sockolov 
Representative: Kim Carpenter, Filed: 12.02.20 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing to remodel an existing nonconforming 3,306-square-foot single-
family residence, including the conversion of third-story conditioned space into deck, located at 
4850 Topaz Street within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  The application 
complies with all development standards of the R-1 zone.  
 
BACKGROUND 
On March 10, 2021, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the application and 
provided the applicant with the following direction:  
 
Public Works Representative, Danielle Uharriet: stated that the applicant must submit a revised 
stormwater application form with building permit submittal and that the standard Public Works 
Department conditions shall be included in the Conditions of Approval. 
 
Building Official, Robin Woodman: stated the guardrails along the deck and inside the residence 
need to be 42 inches and noted additional details may be required at building permit submittal to 
show the interior height of the third story. 
 
Local Architect, Frank Phanton: noted that the site plan did not include the footprint of the 
adjacent structure to the rear.  He recommended mitigation on the deck such as screening, 
plantings, or a trellis in consideration of the privacy of the adjacent property. 
 
Assistant Planner, Sean Sesanto: informed the applicant that the rear elevation should be 
revised to show the rear guardrail height and material, the site plan should be revised to include 

4.B

Packet Pg. 38



 
 

 

the approximate footprint of the neighboring residence to the rear, and recommended including 
privacy mitigation. 
 
Following the Architecture and Site Review meeting, the applicant submitted a revised site plan 
showing the approximate footprint of the adjacent mobile home and a new fence between the 
two properties to be eight feet tall with the top two feet made from lattice. 
 
Development Standards 
The following table outlines the zoning code requirements for development in the R-1 Zoning 
District.  
 

R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District 
 

Development Standards 

Building Height 

R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed 

25 ft. 25 ft. 3 in. 
 

Existing Nonconforming 

25 ft. 3 in. 
Existing 

Nonconforming 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

 Existing Proposed 

Lot Size 3,200 sq. ft. 3,200 sq. ft. 

Maximum Floor Area 
Ratio 

57% (Max 1,824 sq. ft.) 57% (Max 1,824 sq. 
ft.) 

First Story Floor Area 1,352 sq. ft. 1,352 sq. ft. 

Second Story Floor Area 1,303 sq. ft. 1,303 sq. ft. 

Third Story Floor Area 286 sq. ft. 208 sq. ft. 

Decks, Covered Ext. Space 515 sq. ft. 593 sq. ft. 

Deck Exception -150 sq. ft -150 sq. ft. 

Basement 101 sq. ft. 101 sq. ft. 

Basement Exception -101 sq. ft. -101 sq. ft. 

   TOTAL FAR 103.3% (3,306 sq. ft.) 
 
Existing Nonconforming 

103.3% (3,306 sq. ft.) 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way) 

 R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed 

Front Yard 1st Story 15 ft. 19 ft. 2 in. 19 ft. 2 in. 

Front Yard 2nd Story  
& Garage 

20 ft. 2nd Story: 17 ft. 2 in.  
Garage: 18 ft. 10 in. 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

2nd Story: 17 ft. 2 in.  
Garage: 18 ft. 10 in. 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

Front Yard 3rd Story 20 ft. 32 ft. 2 in.   32 ft. 2 in. 

Side Yard 1st Story 10% 
lot 

width 

Lot width 40 
ft. 
 
4 ft. 

East: 4 ft.  
West: 4 ft. 

East: 4 ft.  
West: 4 ft. 

Side Yard 2nd Story 15% 
of 

width 

Lot width 40 
ft.  
 

East: 2 ft. 1 in. 
West: 4 ft.  
 

East: 2 ft. 1 in. 
West: 4 ft.  
 

4.B

Packet Pg. 39



 
 

 

6 ft.  Existing 
Nonconforming 

Existing 
Nonconforming 

Side Yard 3rd Story 15% 
of 

width 

Lot width 40 
ft.  
 
6 ft.  

East: 4 ft.  
West: 4 ft. 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

East: 4 ft.  
West: 4 ft. 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

Rear Yard 1st Story 20% 
of lot 
depth 

Lot depth 80 
ft.  
 
16 ft. 

16 ft. 10 in. 16 ft. 10 in. 

Rear Yard 2nd Story 20% 
of lot 
depth 

Lot depth 80 
ft.  
 
16 ft.  

10 ft. 2 in. 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

10 ft. 2 in. 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

Rear Yard 3rd Story 20% 
of lot 
depth 

Lot depth 80 
ft.  
 
16 ft.  

12 ft. 10 in. 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

12 ft. 10 in. 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

Encroachments (list all) Garage in front setback area, 2nd story in rear and both side 
setback areas, 3rd story in rear and both side setback areas 

Parking 

 Required Existing Proposed 

Residential (from 2,601 up 
to 4,000 sq. ft.) 

4 spaces total 
1 covered 
3 uncovered 

2 spaces total 
1 covered 
1 uncovered 

2 spaces total 
1 covered 
1 uncovered 

Underground Utilities: required with 25% increase in area Not Required 

 
DISCUSSION 
The existing residence at 4850 Topaz Street is a nonconforming, three-story, single-family 
residence.  The lot is in the Jewel Box neighborhood and is surrounded by one- and two-story 
single-family residences and the Surf & Sand mobile home park to the south. 
 
The applicant is proposing to remodel the existing home, including the replacement of 78-
square-feet of third-story enclosed, conditioned space with an open-air, third-story rear deck.  
The proposed changes do not affect the setbacks or total floor area or exacerbate any existing 
nonconformities.  The proposal includes alterations to windows on the side and rear elevations 
of all three stories and a new guardrail on the third-story deck.  The project will maintain the 
existing stucco exterior on the rear and side elevations and the existing front elevation of brick 
and horizontal wood siding.   
 
The existing third-story deck faces the south and east side, overlooking the property at 4870 
Topaz Street and several mobile homes in the adjacent Surf & Sand mobile home park.  
Conditioned space on the third-story will be converted to an open-air deck.  The deck will not 
extend beyond the existing walls.   
 
In response to feedback received at the Architecture and Site Review hearing, the applicant 
submitted revised plans that include a rear fence that is eight feet in height with the top two feet 
as open lattice and clarified the replacement deck guardrail retain the solid wall design. 
 
Non-Conforming Structure 
The existing structure does not comply with numerous development standards including height, 
floor area ratio, and encroachments into the front, side, and rear setbacks, and therefore is a 

4.B

Packet Pg. 40



 
 

 

legal non-conforming structure.  Pursuant to Capitola Municipal Code (CMC) §17.72.070, if 
proposed structural alterations to an existing non-complying structure exceed 80% of the 
present fair market value of the structure, the proposed structural alterations may not be made.  
The applicant has submitted a construction cost breakdown demonstrating that the proposed 
structural alterations are 11 percent of the present fair market value of the structure, so the 
proposed alterations are permissible. 
 
Parking 
Residential lots with a floor area between 2,601 square feet up to 4,000 square feet are required 
to provide four parking spaces, one of which must be covered.  The lot currently provides one 
covered parking space and one uncovered parking space and is therefore considered 
nonconforming.  Pursuant to CMC §17.51.135(B), no additional parking shall be required for 
reconstruction or structural alteration of an existing nonconforming residential structure, so long 
as the floor area of the structure is not increased by more than ten percent of the existing gross 
floor area.  The existing gross floor area of the structure will not increase, so the applicant is not 
required to bring the onsite parking into compliance. 
 
CEQA 
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures provided that 
the addition will not result in an increase of more than 50 percent of the floor area of the 
structures before the addition, or 2,500 square feet, whichever is less.  The proposed project 
includes interior and exterior alterations to an existing nonconforming, 3,306-square-foot, single-
family residence that will not increase the floor area, so this exemption applies.  No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission review the application and approve project 
application #20-0515 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval is for the remodel of an existing three-story residence to convert 

third-story conditioned space into additional deck.  The maximum Floor Area Ratio for 
the 3,200 square foot property is 57% (1,824 square feet).  The existing FAR of the 
structure is 103.3% with a total of 3,306 square feet.  The proposed FAR of the project is 
103.3% with a total of 3,306 square feet, which exceeds the maximum FAR within the 
zone but does not increase the existing floor area.  The proposed project is approved as 
indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on April 
1, 2021, except as modified through conditions imposed by the Planning Commission 
during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission. All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans. 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans. All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.  

4.B

Packet Pg. 41



 
 

 

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department. Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  

 
6. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #20-0515 

shall be paid in full. 
 

7. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works. The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

9. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

10. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

11. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work. No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

12. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

13. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department. All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 
 

14. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

15. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 

4.B

Packet Pg. 42



 
 

 

permit expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 
 

16. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 
underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

17. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  

 
DESIGN PERMIT FINDINGS 

A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 
Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.  
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The proposed remodel of an 
existing single-family residence complies with the development standards of the R-1 
(Single-Family Residence) Zoning District and secures the purposes of the Zoning 
Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.  
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for the remodel of an existing 
single-family residence.  The proposed remodel will maintain the existing design of the 
home with brick, stucco, and horizontal lap siding, composite shingle roof, and stacked 
multi-story deck.  The project will maintain the character and integrity of the 
neighborhood. 

 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FINDINGS 

A. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations.  
Section 15301(e) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts additions to existing structures 
provided the additions will not result in an increase of more than 50 percent of the floor 
area of the structures before the addition, or 2,500 square feet, whichever is less.  The 
proposed project includes interior and exterior alterations to an existing nonconforming, 
3,306-square-foot, single-family residence within the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) 
zoning district that will not increase the floor area, so this exemption applies.  No 
adverse environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project.  

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 4850 Topaz Street - Plan Set 
2. 4850 Topaz Street - Construction Cost Breakdown 
3. 4850 Topaz Street - Color and Materials Information 

 
Prepared By: Sean Sesanto 

4.B

Packet Pg. 43



SITE PLAN
SCALE 1"=10'

1
SHEET

REVISION

TOPAZ STREET

VICINITY MAP4850 TOPAZ STREET

NEW LOWER LEVEL WINDOW

MID LEVEL
WINDOWS TO
BE REMOVED

MID LEVEL WINDOW TO BE ENLARGE

483048504870

DOWNSPOUT
CONVEYS RUNOFF TO LANDSCAPING

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

LK
P

A
V

E
R

S
 (

N
O

 G
R

O
U

T
)

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 W
A

LK
P

A
V

E
R

S
 (

N
O

 G
R

O
U

T
)

DOWNSPOUTS DISCHARGE AT GRADE ON SOLID
SURFACE.  RUNOFF DRAINS TO PAVER AREA AND
DISSIPATE THROUGH GAPS BETWEEN PAVERS

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
IN

G
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 W

A
LK

DOWNSPOUT DRAINS TO CONCRETE
WALK AND THEN TO STREET

12/4/20
1

1

1

NO PROPOSED CHANGES TO IMPERVIOUS AREA
NO PROPOSED CHANGES TO DRAINAGE PATTERNS

PROPOSED
MODIFICATIONS
ARE DIFFICULT
TO SEE FROM
THIS PROPERTY

PROPOSED MODIFICATIONS
ARE NOT VISIBLE FROM
THIS PROPERTY

20'

10'

PARKING SPACE IN
GARAGE AT STREET LEVEL

THREE FOOT WIDE EASEMENT

EXISTING
MOBILE HOME

3/14/21
2

2

REAR FENCE TO BE MADE 8
FEET WITH THE TOP 2 FEET
MADE FROM LATTICE

NEW GUARDRAILS TO BE
SOLID WALL

4.B.1

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
48

50
 T

o
p

az
 S

tr
ee

t)



C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
 &

 C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
33

00
 H

A
A

S
 D

R
IV

E
 A

pt
os

, 9
50

03
P

H
O

N
E

 (
83

1)
 6

62
-8

08
0

F
A

X
 (

83
1)

 6
62

-8
08

0
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

A
N

D
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

@
G

M
A

IL
.C

O
M

SHEET

REVISION

2

EXISTING WALL
NEW 2X4
NEW 2X6
TO BE REMOVED
TO BE ALTERED
WINDOW IN NEW WALL
NEW WINDOW IN EXISTING WALL
POST
EXISTING ROOF
NEW ROOF

8'

1650

50 HALF CIRCLE
BOTTOM 8'-3"

50
30

50
30

50
30

5068 5"

5'-6"

2060

40
16

2060

3060

9' OHD

7.75"

5"

5"

CEILING 7'-2"

BEAM 6'-9"

8'

16
66

2060

3650

16
50

16
50

O
W

N
E

R
:

R
O

D
 S

O
C

K
O

LO
V

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
O

C
K

O
LO

V
 R

E
M

O
D

E
L

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

# 
20

-3
26

A
P

N
: 0

34
 0

66
 0

6

D
A

T
E

: A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
02

0

14'

10'-4"

4'-11 1/2"

12'-10"11'-2"

3'-6"

U
P

D
O

W
N

2060

SPA ACCESS
AT CEILING

FURNACE
RETURN

WH

FAU

GAS METER

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH 2

OPEN TO BELOW

LAUNDRY

GARAGE

ELECTRIC SERVICE

UP

DECK

2620

40
20

8'

6016

10
36

11050

4650 11
05

0

10
36

4040

30
40

3650 3650 3650

16
50

16
50

DOWN

U
P

2060

BEDROOM 1

BATH 1

1/2 BATH

KITCHEN

DINING

FAMILY ROOM

DOW
N

SPA TUB AND
SHOWER

DECK

4050

50
50

40
50

CEILING 10'

CEILING 7'-8"

BEAM
6'-7"

DECK ABOVE

30
50

OPEN TO BELOW

FLAT CEILING AT 7'

BOTTOM OF BEAM
5'-11"

37" GUARDRAIL

2020

GUARDRAIL

STEP
2'-11"

BOTTOM OF EAVES
5'-9"

UP

14"

ELEVATION TO GRADE
18'

FLAT CEILING AT 4'

BOTTOM OF BEAM
7'-6"

40
40

UP

HIG
H C

EIL
IN

G

CEILING 8'

FLOOR ABOVE

CEILING 8'

CEILING 7'

BRICK FIREPLACE

CEILING 7'

WALL HEIGHT 8'-1"

RIDGE

VAULTED

VAULTED

BEAMS 8'-6"
6016

D
O

W
N

CEILING 8'

CEILING 7'

CEILING 7'

CEILING 8'

CEILING 8'

U
P

PL 40'

P
L 

80
'

PL 40'

P
L 

80
'

D
O

W
N

32'

44'

9'-2 1/2"

WINE CELLAR
EXISTING UPPER LEVEL CONDITIONED SPACE  377 SF
EXISTING UPPER LEVEL DECK  184 SF

EXISTING MID LEVEL CONDITIONED SPACE  1,290 SF
EXISTING MID LEVEL DECK  170 SF

EXISTING LOWER LEVEL CONDITIONED SPACE  794 SF
EXISTING LOWER LEVEL GARAGE  553 SF

THE EXISTING WINE CELLAR IS LOCATED BELOW
THE EXISTING ENTRY STAIR CASE.  NO CHANGES
PROPOSED, EXCEPT TO REMOVE THE STAIR
ACCESS AND PROVIDE ACCESS FROM UNDER
THE ENTRY STAIRCASE THROUGH A HATCH.

12/4/20
1

1

EXISTING CONDITIONED SPACE
TO BE CONVERTED TO DECK 1

4.B.1

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
48

50
 T

o
p

az
 S

tr
ee

t)



3

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
 &

 C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
33

00
 H

A
A

S
 D

R
IV

E
 A

pt
os

, 9
50

03
P

H
O

N
E

 (
83

1)
 6

62
-8

08
0

F
A

X
 (

83
1)

 6
62

-8
08

0
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

A
N

D
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

@
G

M
A

IL
.C

O
M

SHEET

REVISION

O
W

N
E

R
:

R
O

D
 S

O
C

K
O

LO
V

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
O

C
K

O
LO

V
 R

E
M

O
D

E
L

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

# 
20

-3
26

A
P

N
: 0

34
 0

66
 0

6

D
A

T
E

: A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
02

0

8'

1650

50 HALF CIRCLE
BOTTOM 8'-3"

50
30

50
30

50
30

5068 5"

5'-6"

2060

40
16

2060

3060

9' OHD

7.75"

5"

BEAM 6'-9"

8'

16
66

2060

14'

10'-4"

4'-11 1/2"

12'-10"11'-2"

2060

GAS
METER

BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BATH 2

OPEN TO BELOW

GARAGE

ELECTRIC
SERVICE

UP

DECK

8'

6016

11050

4650 11
05

0

3650 3650

2060

BEDROOM 1

1/2 BATH

KITCHEN

DINING

FAMILY ROOM

DOWN

DECK

40
50

CEILING 7'-8"

DECK ABOVE

OPEN TO BELOW

FLAT CEILING AT 7'

BOTTOM OF BEAM
5'-11"

37" GUARDRAIL

2020

GUARDRAIL

STEP
2'-11"

ELEVATION TO GRADE
18'

BOTTOM OF BEAM
7'-6"

40
40

HIG
H C

EIL
IN

G

FLOOR ABOVE

CEILING 8'

WALL HEIGHT 8'-1"

RIDGE
VAULTED

BEAMS 8'-6"
6016

CEILING 8'

CEILING 7'

CEILING 8'

CEILING 8'

PL 40'

P
L 

80
'

PL 40'

P
L 

80
'

DOW
N

32'

44'

9'-2 1/2"

NICHE

BRICK FIREPLACE

50
50

4040

CEILING 7'

GUARDRAIL

BATH 1

FAMILY ROOM
ABOVE

LI
N

E
N

4050

U
P

8'-4"

4'-9"

5'-10"

3'-8 1/2"

2620

40
20

FLAT CEILING AT 4'

5'-11 1/2"

12'-5"

3' 12'-2 1/2"

9'-2 1/2"

OVEN

3'
7'-7 1/2"

8'-2 1/2"

3'-3"

CEILING 10'

TURTLE SHELF

FLOOR ABOVE

CLOSET

LAUNDRY

U
PDOWN

50
40

3650

16
50

16
50

8'-0 1/2"

3'-10"

24" MIN

UP

10'-7"

WALL BELOW
GUARDRAIL

3'-1"

R1'-8"

3'-2 1/2"

3'-11"

1'-9 1/2"

5'-6 1/2"

4'-9"

DOWN
2 FOOT STEP

D
O

W
N

5020

4020

U
P

WINE CELLAR

EXISTING WALL
NEW 2X4
NEW 2X6
TO BE REMOVED
TO BE ALTERED
WINDOW IN NEW WALL
NEW WINDOW IN EXISTING WALL
POST
EXISTING ROOF
NEW ROOF

10'-5 1/2"

PROPOSED UPPER LEVEL CONDITIONED SPACE  301 SF
PROPOSED UPPER LEVEL DECK  260 SF

EXISTING AND PROPOSED MID LEVEL CONDITIONED SPACE  1,290 SF
EXISTING AND PROPOSED MID LEVEL DECK  170 SF

PROPOSED LOWER LEVEL CONDITIONED SPACE  810 SF
PROPOSED LOWER LEVEL GARAGE  537 SF

9'-2"

NEW CONDITIONED SPACE
16 SF

NEW UPPER LEVEL DECK AREA
76 SF

5'-11 1/2"

12/4/20
1

1
ACCESS TO WINE CELLAR

4.B.1

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
48

50
 T

o
p

az
 S

tr
ee

t)



WINDOW TO BE REPLACED
WITH LARGER WINDOW

PORTION OF CONDITIONED SPACE
TO BE CONVERTED TO DECK

STUCCO EXTERIOR

25'-3"

WINDOWS TO BE REMOVED

PORTION OF CONDITIONED SPACE
TO BE CONVERTED TO DECK

NO PROPOSED CHANGES TO NORTH ELEVATION

BRICK FACING

COMPOSITION ROOFING

HORIZONTAL WOOD SIDING

4EXISTING ELEVATIONS
SCALE 1

4" = 1'

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
 &

 C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
33

00
 H

A
A

S
 D

R
IV

E
 A

pt
os

, 9
50

03
P

H
O

N
E

 (
83

1)
 6

62
-8

08
0

F
A

X
 (

83
1)

 6
62

-8
08

0
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

A
N

D
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

@
G

M
A

IL
.C

O
M

SHEET

REVISION

O
W

N
E

R
:

R
O

D
 S

O
C

K
O

LO
V

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
O

C
K

O
LO

V
 R

E
M

O
D

E
L

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

# 
20

-3
26

A
P

N
: 0

34
 0

66
 0

6

D
A

T
E

: A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
02

0

4.B.1

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
48

50
 T

o
p

az
 S

tr
ee

t)



NEW LARGER WINDOW AT KITCHEN

EXPANDED DECK AT UPPER LEVEL
(CONDITIONED SPACE REMOVED)

NEW GUARDRAIL AND DECK
SURFACE AT EXPANDED DECK

EAVES TO BE CUT BACK TO 4" PAST BUILDING LINE

NEW WINDOW
AT NEW

LAUNDRY ROOM

NEW WINDOW
AT UPPER LEVEL

PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
SCALE 1

4" = 1'
5

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
 &

 C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
33

00
 H

A
A

S
 D

R
IV

E
 A

pt
os

, 9
50

03
P

H
O

N
E

 (
83

1)
 6

62
-8

08
0

F
A

X
 (

83
1)

 6
62

-8
08

0
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

A
N

D
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

@
G

M
A

IL
.C

O
M

SHEET

REVISION

O
W

N
E

R
:

R
O

D
 S

O
C

K
O

LO
V

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
O

C
K

O
LO

V
 R

E
M

O
D

E
L

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

# 
20

-3
26

A
P

N
: 0

34
 0

66
 0

6

D
A

T
E

: A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
02

0

4.B.1

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
48

50
 T

o
p

az
 S

tr
ee

t)



6

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
 &

 C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
33

00
 H

A
A

S
 D

R
IV

E
 A

pt
os

, 9
50

03
P

H
O

N
E

 (
83

1)
 6

62
-8

08
0

F
A

X
 (

83
1)

 6
62

-8
08

0
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

A
N

D
C

A
R

P
E

N
T

E
R

@
G

M
A

IL
.C

O
M

SHEET

REVISION

O
W

N
E

R
:

R
O

D
 S

O
C

K
O

LO
V

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

P
R

O
JE

C
T

:

S
O

C
K

O
LO

V
 R

E
M

O
D

E
L

48
50

 T
O

P
A

Z
 S

T
R

E
E

T
C

A
P

IT
O

LA
, C

A
 9

50
10

# 
20

-3
26

A
P

N
: 0

34
 0

66
 0

6

D
A

T
E

: A
U

G
U

S
T

 2
02

0

3650

16
50

16
50

2060

DECK

2620

40
20

30
50

2020

BOTTOM OF EAVES
5'-9"

40
40

6016

2060

DECK

2020

40
40

6016

2620

40
20

10'-7"

EAVES TO BE CUT BACK TO NEW BUILDING LINE

5020

9/12 9/12

9/12

9/
12

FLAT ROOF

9/12

9/12

11050

4650 11
05

0

4040

11050

4650 11
05

0

4040

RIDGE RIDGE

9/12 9/12

9/12

9/
12

9/12

9/12

RIDGE

FLAT ROOF

12/4/20
1

1
SHEET ADDED

PEAKPEAK

4.B.1

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
48

50
 T

o
p

az
 S

tr
ee

t)



Existing Building Costs:

Existing Residence: 2,461.00$      square feet = 492,200.00$  
200.00$         square foot

Exisiting Garage: 553.00$         square feet = 49,770.00$    
90.00$           square foot

Existing Deck: 354.00$         square feet = 8,850.00$      
25.00$           square foot

550,820.00$  

440,656.00$  

New Construction Costs:

New Conditioned Space: 16.00$           square feet = 3,200.00$      
200.00$         square foot

New Garage: square feet =
90.00$           square foot

New deck/porch: square feet =
25.00$           square foot

3,200.00$      

Remodel Costs: (50% of "new construction" costs)

Remodel Conditioned Space: 585.00$         square feet = 58,500.00$    
100.00$         square foot

Remodel Garage: square feet =
45.00$           square foot

Remodel Deck: 76.00$           square feet = 950.00$         
12.50$           square foot

59,450.00$    

62,650.00$    
% of Existing Value 11.4%

Total Construction/Remodel Cost

CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN PER Section 17.72.070

PLANNING STAFF

Total Existing Value:

80% of Total Existing Value

Total New Construction Value:

Total Remodel Value:

4.B.2

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 C

o
st

 B
re

ak
d

o
w

n
  (

48
50

 T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t)



 

ABD Insurance and Financial Services Confidential and Proprietary  page |  1 

4850 Topaz Street, Capitola 

 

Color and Materials 

 
Exterior: 

Current house colors, horizontal wood siding in front with stucco in rear of house (see picture 

#1).  Standard brick surround at front doorway All trim to remain as is. 

 

Roofing:  

Comp Shingles – remain the same after the remodel (Grey - see picture #1). 

 

Guardrail Wall: 

Solid deck guard-wall, 42” in height or to Building Code with wood/stucco matching the current 

exterior.  An additional 12” glass enclosure above rail (picture #2 provides example of the 

design but not actual scale or dimensions).   

 

Fencing: 

6’ vertical plank fence roughly 6” in width with additional 2’ lattice for total 8’ fence height.  

Lattice will have 5” border with slats of 2” and roughly 3” in spacing (see picture #3).  The 

fence will start 15+ feet from front property line and run from garage to rear covering both side 

and rear of home. 

The side Fencing will be flush with or behind the garage towards the rear. 

 

Windows:  

Millgard Tuscany, White vinyl LowE Double pane. 

 

 

 

 

4.B.3

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
C

o
lo

r 
an

d
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

  (
48

50
 T

o
p

az
 S

tr
ee

t)



ABD Insurance and Financial Services Confidential and Proprietary  page |  2 

1. Exterior and Roof 

2. Guardrail 

 

3. Replacement Fence 

 

 

4.B.3

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

85
0 

T
o

p
az

 S
tr

ee
t 

- 
C

o
lo

r 
an

d
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

  (
48

50
 T

o
p

az
 S

tr
ee

t)



 

 

 
 

S T A F F  R E P O R T  

 
TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
DATE: APRIL 1, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: 307 McCormick Avenue  #20-0475  APN: 036-091-04 
 

Design Permit for first- and second-story additions with a Variance 
request for the required parking space dimensions and side setbacks 
for an existing single-family residence located within the R-1 (Single-
Family Residential) zoning district.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone and requires a Coastal 
Development Permit which is not appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Thomas Rathjens 
Representative: Dennis Norton, Filed: 11.20.2020 

 
APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant is proposing 703 square feet of first- and second-story additions to a 
nonconforming single-family residence located at 307 McCormick Avenue within the R-1 
(Single-Family Residential) zoning district.  The applicant is requesting a variance to the 
required parking space dimensions and the required first-story side yard setback. 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2005, the Planning Commission approved a design permit to replace the original flat roof with 
a new hipped roof at 307 McCormick.  
 
On February 24, 2021, the Architectural and Site Review Committee reviewed the current 
application and provided the applicant with the following direction:  
 
Public Works Representative, Danielle Uharriet: had no comments. 
 
Building Official, Robin Woodman: informed the applicant the electric subpanel should be 
moved out of the closet in bedroom number 3, walls within 5 feet of the property line must be 
built to one-hour fire wall construction standards, and the labels for the North and South 
elevations should be reversed. 
 
Local Architect, Frank Phanton: stated that the additions conform with setbacks, protect the 
privacy of the neighboring properties, and work with existing building design. 
 
Associate Planner, Matt Orbach: had no comments. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 53



 
 

 

 
Development Standards 
The following table outlines the zoning code requirements for development in the R-1 Zoning 
District.  The applicant is seeking a variance to the required covered parking space dimensions 
and required side yard setback. 
 

R-1 (Single Family Residential) Zoning District 
 

Development Standards 

Building Height 

R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed 

25 ft. 14 ft. 4 in. 23 ft. 2 in. 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

 Existing Proposed 

Lot Size 3,858 sq. ft. 3,858 sq. ft. 

Maximum Floor Area Ratio 54% (Max 2,083 sq. ft.) 54% (Max 2,083 sq. ft.) 

First Story Floor Area 1,148 sq. ft. 1,499 sq. ft. 

Second Story Floor Area N/A 349 sq. ft. 

Deck/Covered Ext. Space 15 sq. ft. 153 sq. ft. 

Deck/Covered Ext. 
Exception  

-15 sq. ft. (Max 150 sq. ft.) -150 sq. ft. 

   TOTAL FAR 29.8% (1,148 sq. ft.) 48% (1,851 sq. ft.) 

Yards (setbacks are measured from the edge of the public right-of-way) 

 R-1 Regulation Existing Proposed 

Front Yard 1st Story 15 ft. 17 ft. 6 in. 17 ft. 6 in. 

Front Yard 2nd Story  
& Garage 

20 ft. 2nd Story: N/A 
Garage: N/A 

2nd Story: 47 ft. 8 in. 
Garage: 20 ft. 

Side Yard 1st Story 10% 
lot 

width 

Lot width: 
41 ft. 11 in. 
 
4 ft. 2 in. 

North: 4 ft. 11 in.  
 
South: 0 ft. 5 in. 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

North: 4 ft.  
Variance Requested 
 
South: 0 ft. 5 in. 
Existing Nonconforming 

Side Yard 2nd Story 15% 
of 

width 

Lot width: 
41 ft. 11 in.  
 
6 ft. 3 in. 

N/A 
 

North: 15 ft. 9 in. 
 
South: 9 ft. 1 in. 
 

Rear Yard 1st Story 20% 
of lot 
depth 

Lot depth: 
96 ft. 6 in.  
 
19 ft. 4 in. 

 
28 ft. 5 in. 

 
21 ft. 8 in. 

Rear Yard 2nd Story 20% 
of lot 
depth 

Lot depth: 
96 ft. 6 in.  
 
19 ft. 4 in. 

 
N/A 

 
19 ft. 6 in. 

Encroachments (list all) Proposed attached garage 
encroaches into side setback. 

 

Parking 

 Required Existing Proposed 

Residential (from 1,501 up 
to 2,000 sq. ft.) 

2 spaces total 
2 uncovered 

1 spaces total 
0 covered 
1 uncovered 

2 spaces total 
1 covered* 
1 uncovered 

5.A

Packet Pg. 54



 
 

 

 
 
Existing 
Nonconforming 

 
*1 substandard parking 
space. 
Variance Requested 

Underground Utilities: required with 25% increase in area Required 

 
DISCUSSION 
The existing residence at 307 McCormick Avenue is a nonconforming, one-story, single-family 
residence.  The lot is located near the Upper Village between Depot Hill and Noble Gulch Park.  
The lot is surrounded by one- and two-story single-family homes.  
 
The applicant is proposing to construct 703 square feet of first- and second-story additions.  The 
first story addition includes an attached garage on the front of the home and a new family room 
off the back of the home.  A second story addition with deck is proposed above the new family 
room toward the back of the home.  The second story addition has a hipped roof to match the 
existing first story.  The existing home has a stucco exterior.  The application is proposing lap 
siding on the second story and along the first story on the north elevation.  The differentiation in 
materials between the first and second stories will add architectural interest and break up the 
massing of the overall design.    
 
Nonconforming Structure 
The existing structure is located within the side yard setback on the south side.  The existing 
structure does not comply with the setback regulations of the zoning code and therefore is a 
legal non-conforming structure.  Pursuant to Capitola Municipal Code (CMC) §17.72.070, if 
proposed structural alterations to an existing nonconforming structure exceed 80 percent of the 
present fair market value of the structure, the proposed structural alterations may not be made.  
The applicant has submitted a construction cost breakdown demonstrating that the proposed 
structural alterations are 55 percent of the present fair market value of the structure, therefore 
the alterations are permissible. 
 
Non-Conforming Parking 
Pursuant to CMC §17.51.130(A)(1), single-family residences up to one thousand five hundred 
square feet require two uncovered onsite parking spaces.  There is currently only one 
uncovered parking space on the lot, so the structure is nonconforming in terms of parking.  
Pursuant to CMC §17.51.135(B), if a structure with nonconforming parking is enlarged more 
than ten percent of the existing gross floor area, parking requirements must be met.  The 
proposed addition would increase the existing gross floor area by 55 percent and the proposed 
total floor area of 1,851 square feet would require one covered parking space and one 
uncovered parking space.   
 
Variance 
Pursuant to §17.66.090, the Planning Commission, on the basis of the evidence submitted at 
the hearing, may grant a variance permit when it finds: 
 
A. That because of special circumstances applicable to subject property, including size, shape, 

topography, location or surroundings, the strict application of this title is found to deprive 
subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under identical 
zone classification; 

B.  That the grant of a variance permit would not constitute a grant of special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitations upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which 
subject property is situated. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 55



 
 

 

 
The applicant is requesting a variance to the required covered parking space dimensions and 
the required side yard setback.  The request is analyzed below.   
 
Due to the orientation of the existing single-family residence on the lot, the applicant is unable to 
construct a garage that complies with the side yard setback and parking dimension standards.  
Covered parking spaces are required to be a minimum of 20 feet long by 10 feet wide.  Also, 
structures in the R-1 zone, have a minimum side yard setback requirement of 10 percent of the 
zone width, or 4 feet 11 inches on this property.  The applicant is seeking approval of a variance 
to allow an attached garage four feet from the property line with a parking space that does not 
meet minimum required width of 10 feet.  The proposed garage includes a nine-foot-wide by 20-
foot-long covered parking space.  The interior garage wall is angled; therefore, the interior width 
averages 9 feet 6 inches as the garage is wider toward the back.   
 
In relation to variance finding A, there are special circumstances applicable to the subject 
property as it is an irregularly shaped lot.  The rear property line is angled; therefore, one side of 
the property is 16 feet shorter than the other.  In addition, the structure at 307 McCormick 
Avenue, as well as several surrounding properties, are misaligned with the property boundaries.  
Due to the property shape and historical orientation of development on this lot and surrounding 
lots, the strict application of the development standards for parking space dimensions would 
deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity and under 
identical zone classification. 
 
To analyze whether or not the approval of a variance would be a grant of special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which the 
property is situated (variance finding B), staff reviewed characteristics and lot dimensions and 
lot dimensions of adjacent properties.  Eleven properties along the west side of McCormick 
Avenue between Park Avenue and Loma Avenue were reviewed.  Eight of the observed eleven 
properties have garages or carports.  Five of those garages and carports appear to have 
nonconforming side yard setbacks.  The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of 
special privilege because multiple properties in the vicinity have existing garages or carports 
that encroach into the required side setbacks and would not meet minimum parking dimensions 
if they complied with all other development standards. 
 
The proposed attached garage was designed in a way that provides a substandard covered 
parking space while maintaining a four-foot side yard setback.  The Planning Commission could 
require the garage to be the required ten-foot-wide by twenty-foot-long dimensions by allowing 
the applicant to encroach an additional seven inches into the north side setback.   
 
Landscaping 
Pursuant to §12.32.010, driveway widths shall not exceed forty percent of the lot width.  
Currently, the entire front yard is gravel and is utilized for parking across the majority of the 
street frontage.  The proposed project will relocate the parking to the north side of the property 
in compliance with the maximum driveway width and landscaping will replace the graveled area 
between the new driveway and the south property line.  Condition #6 requires the applicant to 
submit a landscape plan for approval by the Community Development Director prior to issuance 
of a building permit.   
 
There are several trees on the property located on the front and back yard.  The applicant is not 
proposing to remove any of the existing trees within the current planning permit.  
 
CEQA 

5.A

Packet Pg. 56



 
 

 

Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts projects characterized as in-fill development 
when the project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable 
general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations; the 
proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no more than five acres 
substantially surrounded by urban uses; the project site has no value as habitat for endangered, 
rare, or threatened species; the project would not result in any significant effects relating to 
traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and the site can be adequately served by all required 
utilities and public services. This project involves first- and second-story additions to an existing 
nonconforming single-family residence within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district. 
The proposed project is consistent with the in-fill development exemption and no adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Planning Commission review the application and approve project 
application #20-0475 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
1. The project approval consists of 703 square feet of first- and second-story additions.  

The approval includes variances for the required parking space dimensions and first-
story side setback. The maximum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) for the 3,858 square foot 
property is 54% (2,083 square feet). The total FAR of the project is 48% with a total of 
1,851 square feet, compliant with the maximum FAR within the zone. The proposed 
project is approved as indicated on the final plans reviewed and approved by the 
Planning Commission on April 1, 2021, except as modified through conditions imposed 
by the Planning Commission during the hearing. 
 

2. Prior to construction, a building permit shall be secured for any new construction or 
modifications to structures authorized by this permit. Final building plans shall be 
consistent with the plans approved by the Planning Commission. All construction and 
site improvements shall be completed according to the approved plans. 
 

3. At time of submittal for building permit review, the Conditions of Approval must be 
printed in full on the cover sheet of the construction plans.  
 

4. At time of submittal for building permit review, Public Works Standard Detail SMP STRM 
shall be printed in full and incorporated as a sheet into the construction plans. All 
construction shall be done in accordance with the Public Works Standard Detail BMP 
STRM.  

 
5. Prior to making any changes to approved plans, modifications must be specifically 

requested and submitted in writing to the Community Development Department. Any 
significant changes to the size or exterior appearance of the structure shall require 
Planning Commission approval.  
 

6. Prior to issuance of building permit, a landscape plan shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Community Development Department. The landscape plan can be 
produced by the property owner, a landscape professional, or a landscape architect.  
Landscape plans shall reflect the Planning Commission approval and shall identify type, 
size, and location of species and details of any proposed (but not required) irrigation 
systems.  

 

5.A

Packet Pg. 57



 
 

 

7. Prior to issuance of building permit, all Planning fees associated with permit #20-0475 
shall be paid in full. 
 

8. Prior to issuance of building permit, the developer shall pay Affordable housing in-lieu 
fees as required to assure compliance with the City of Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) 
Housing Ordinance.  
 

9. Prior to issuance of a building permit, the applicant must provide documentation of plan 
approval by the following entities: Santa Cruz County Sanitation Department, Soquel 
Creek Water District, and Central Fire Protection District.  
 

10. Prior to issuance of building permits, a drainage plan, grading, sediment and erosion 
control plan, shall be submitted to the City and approved by Public Works. The plans 
shall be in compliance with the requirements specified in Capitola Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16 Storm Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 
 

11. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant shall submit a stormwater 
management plan to the satisfaction of the Director of Public Works which implements 
all applicable Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) and Public Works Standard 
Details, including all standards relating to low impact development (LID). 
 

12. Prior to any land disturbance, a pre-site inspection must be conducted by the grading 
official to verify compliance with the approved erosion and sediment control plan.  
 

13. Prior to any work in the City road right of way, an encroachment permit shall be acquired 
by the contractor performing the work. No material or equipment storage may be placed 
in the road right-of-way. 
 

14. During construction, any construction activity shall be subject to a construction noise 
curfew, except when otherwise specified in the building permit issued by the City. 
Construction noise shall be prohibited between the hours of nine p.m. and seven-thirty 
a.m. on weekdays. Construction noise shall be prohibited on weekends with the 
exception of Saturday work between nine a.m. and four p.m. or emergency work 
approved by the building official. §9.12.010B 
 

15. Prior to a project final, all cracked or broken driveway approaches, curb, gutter, or 
sidewalk shall be replaced per the Public Works Standard Details and to the satisfaction 
of the Public Works Department. All replaced driveway approaches, curb, gutter or 
sidewalk shall meet current Accessibility Standards. 
 

16. Prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, compliance with all conditions of 
approval shall be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Community Development 
Director. Upon evidence of non-compliance with conditions of approval or applicable 
municipal code provisions, the applicant shall remedy the non-compliance to the 
satisfaction of the Community Development Director or shall file an application for a 
permit amendment for Planning Commission consideration. Failure to remedy a non-
compliance in a timely manner may result in permit revocation. 
 

17. This permit shall expire 24 months from the date of issuance. The applicant shall have 
an approved building permit and construction underway before this date to prevent 
permit expiration. Applications for extension may be submitted by the applicant prior to 
expiration pursuant to Municipal Code section 17.81.160. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 58



 
 

 

 
18. The planning and infrastructure review and approval are transferable with the title to the 

underlying property so that an approved project may be conveyed or assigned by the 
applicant to others without losing the approval. The permit cannot be transferred off the 
site on which the approval was granted. 
 

19. Upon receipt of certificate of occupancy, garbage and recycling containers shall be 
placed out of public view on non-collection days.  
 

20. Prior to issuance of building permits, the building plans must show that the existing 
overhead utility lines will be underground to the nearest utility pole.  

 

DESIGN PERMIT FINDINGS 
A. The project, subject to the conditions imposed, secures the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.  
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  With the approval of variances for 
the required parking space dimensions and the required first-story side setback, the first- 
and second-story additions comply with the development standards of the R-1 (Single-
Family Residential) Zoning District and secure the purposes of the Zoning Ordinance, 
General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan.  
 

B. The project will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
Community Development Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the 
Planning Commission have all reviewed the application for first- and second-story 
additions to an existing single-family residence.  The design of the additions, with a 
hipped roof to match the existing first story roof, lap and stucco siding, and a rear 
second-story deck, will fit in nicely with the existing neighborhood.  The project will 
maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 

 
VARIANCE FINDINGS 

A. Special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including size, shape, 
topography, location or surroundings, exist on the site and the strict application 
of this title is found to deprive subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification;  
The subject property has an irregular lot shape with one rear property side 16 feet 
shorter than the other.  In addition, 307 McCormick Avenue and several surrounding 
properties have been developed in a manner contrary to their lot orientations.  Due to 
the property shape and historical orientation of development on this lot and surrounding 
lots, the strict application of the development standards for parking space dimensions 
and side setbacks would deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other 
properties in the vicinity and under identical zone classification. 
 

B. The grant of a variance would not constitute a grant of a special privilege 
inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in 
which subject property is situated.  
Multiple properties on the block have either garages or carports that do not comply with 
side setbacks and would not meet minimum parking dimensions if they complied with all 
other development standards.  Therefore, the approval of variances for the parking 
space dimensions and side setbacks would not be a grant of special privilege 

5.A

Packet Pg. 59



 
 

 

inconsistent with the limitation upon other properties in the vicinity and zone in which the 
property the property is situated. 

 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA) FINDINGS 

A. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15332 of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations.  
Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts projects characterized as in-fill 
development when the project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation 
and all applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning designation and 
regulations; the proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no 
more than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses; the project site has no 
value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened species; the project would not result 
in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality; and the site 
can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services. This project 
involves first- and second-story additions to an existing nonconforming single-family 
residence within the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district. The proposed 
project is consistent with the in-fill development exemption and no adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project.   

 
COASTAL FINDINGS 
D. Findings Required.  

1. A coastal permit shall be granted only upon adoption of specific written factual 
findings supporting the conclusion that the proposed development conforms to 
the certified Local Coastal Program, including, but not limited to: 
a. A statement of the individual and cumulative burdens imposed on public access and 

recreation opportunities based on applicable factors identified pursuant to subsection 
(D)(2) of this section. The type of affected public access and recreation opportunities 
shall be clearly described; 

b. An analysis based on applicable factors identified in subsection (D)(2) of this section 
of the necessity for requiring public access conditions to find the project consistent 
with the public access provisions of the Coastal Act; 

c. A description of the legitimate governmental interest furthered by any access 
conditioned required; 

d. An explanation of how imposition of an access dedication requirement alleviates the 
access burdens identified. 

 

• The proposed development conforms to the City’s certified Local Coastal Plan 
(LCP). The specific, factual findings, as per CMC Section 17.46.090(D) are as 
follows: 

 
2. Require Project-Specific Findings. In determining any requirement for public 

access, including the type of access and character of use, the city shall evaluate 
and document in written findings the factors identified in subsections (D)(2)(a) 
through (e), to the extent applicable. The findings shall explain the basis for the 
conclusions and decisions of the city and shall be supported by substantial 
evidence in the record. If an access dedication is required as a condition of 
approval, the findings shall explain how the adverse effects which have been 
identified will be alleviated or mitigated by the dedication. As used in this section, 
“cumulative effect” means the effect of the individual project in combination with 

5.A

Packet Pg. 60



 
 

 

the effects of past projects, other current projects, and probable future projects, 
including development allowed under applicable planning and zoning. 
a. Project Effects on Demand for Access and Recreation. Identification of existing and 

open public access and coastal recreation areas and facilities in the regional and 
local vicinity of the development. Analysis of the project’s effects upon existing public 
access and recreation opportunities. Analysis of the project’s cumulative effects upon 
the use and capacity of the identified access and recreation opportunities, including 
public tidelands and beach resources, and upon the capacity of major coastal roads 
from subdivision, intensification or cumulative buildout. Projection for the anticipated 
demand and need for increased coastal access and recreation opportunities for the 
public. Analysis of the contribution of the project’s cumulative effects to any such 
projected increase. Description of the physical characteristics of the site and its 
proximity to the sea, tideland viewing points, upland recreation areas, and trail 
linkages to tidelands or recreation areas. Analysis of the importance and potential of 
the site, because of its location or other characteristics, for creating, preserving or 
enhancing public access to tidelands or public recreation opportunities; 

 

• The proposed project is located at 307 McCormick Avenue. The home is not 
located in an area with coastal access. The home will not have an effect on 
public trails or beach access. 

 
b. Shoreline Processes. Description of the existing shoreline conditions, including 

beach profile, accessibility and usability of the beach, history of erosion or accretion, 
character and sources of sand, wave and sand movement, presence of shoreline 
protective structures, location of the line of mean high tide during the season when 
the beach is at its narrowest (generally during the late winter) and the proximity of 
that line to existing structures, and any other factors which substantially characterize 
or affect the shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to 
shoreline processes at the site. Identification of anticipated changes to shoreline 
processes and beach profile unrelated to the proposed development. Description 
and analysis of any reasonably likely changes, attributable to the primary and 
cumulative effects of the project, to: wave and sand movement affecting beaches in 
the vicinity of the project; the profile of the beach; the character, extent, accessibility 
and usability of the beach; and any other factors which characterize or affect 
beaches in the vicinity. Analysis of the effect of any identified changes of the project, 
alone or in combination with other anticipated changes, will have upon the ability of 
the public to use public tidelands and shoreline recreation areas; 

 

• The proposed project is located along McCormick Avenue. No portion of the 
project is located along the shoreline or beach. 

 
c. Historic Public Use. Evidence of use of the site by members of the general public for 

a continuous five-year period (such use may be seasonal). Evidence of the type and 
character of use made by the public (vertical, lateral, blufftop, etc., and for passive 
and/or active recreational use, etc.). Identification of any agency (or person) who has 
maintained and/or improved the area subject to historic public use and the nature of 
the maintenance performed and improvements made. Identification of the record 
owner of the area historically used by the public and any attempts by the owner to 
prohibit public use of the area, including the success or failure of those attempts. 
Description of the potential for adverse impact on public use of the area from the 

5.A

Packet Pg. 61



 
 

 

proposed development (including but not limited to, creation of physical or 
psychological impediments to public use); 

 

• There is not a history of public use on the subject lot. 
 

d. Physical Obstructions. Description of any physical aspects of the development 
which block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the tidelands, public 
recreation areas, or other public coastal resources or to see the shoreline; 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property on McCormick Avenue. The 
project will not block or impede the ability of the public to get to or along the 
tidelands, public recreation areas, or views to the shoreline. 

 
e. Other Adverse Impacts on Access and Recreation. Description of the development’s 

physical proximity and relationship to the shoreline and any public recreation area. 
Analysis of the extent of which buildings, walls, signs, streets or other aspects of the 
development, individually or cumulatively, are likely to diminish the public’s use of 
tidelands or lands committed to public recreation. Description of any alteration of the 
aesthetic, visual or recreational value of public use areas, and of any diminution of 
the quality or amount of recreational use of public lands which may be attributable to 
the individual or cumulative effects of the development. 

 

• The proposed project is located on private property that will not impact access 
and recreation. The project does not diminish the public’s use of tidelands or 
lands committed to public recreation nor alter the aesthetic, visual, or recreational 
value of public use areas. 

 
3. Required Findings for Public Access Exceptions. Any determination that one of 

the exceptions of subsection (F)(2) applies to a development shall be supported 
by written findings of fact, analysis and conclusions which address all of the 
following: 
a. The type of access potentially applicable to the site involved (vertical, 

lateral, bluff top, etc.) and its location in relation to the fragile coastal resource to be 
protected, the agricultural use, the public safety concern, or the military facility which 
is the basis for the exception, as applicable; 

b. Unavailability of any mitigating measures to manage the type, character, intensity, 
hours, season or location of such use so that agricultural resources, fragile coastal 
resources, public safety, or military security, as applicable, are protected; 

c. Ability of the public, through another reasonable means, to reach the same area of 
public tidelands as would be made accessible by an accessway on the subject land. 

 

• The project is not requesting a Public Access Exception, therefore these findings 
do not apply. 

 
4. Findings for Management Plan Conditions. Written findings in support of a 

condition requiring a management plan for regulating the time and manner or 
character of public access use must address the following factors, as applicable: 
a. Identification and protection of specific habitat values including the reasons 

supporting the conclusions that such values must be protected by limiting the hours, 
seasons, or character of public use; 

 

5.A

Packet Pg. 62



 
 

 

• The project is located in a residential area without sensitive habitat areas. 
 

b. Topographic constraints of the development site; 
 

• The project is located on a flat lot. 
 

c. Recreational needs of the public; 
 

• The project does not impact the recreational needs of the public. 
 

d. Rights of privacy of the landowner which could not be mitigated by setting the project 
back from the access way or otherwise conditioning the development; 

e. The requirements of the possible accepting agency, if an offer of dedication is the 
mechanism for securing public access; 

f. Feasibility of adequate setbacks, fencing, landscaping, and other methods as part of 
a management plan to regulate public use. 

 
5. Project complies with public access requirements, including submittal of 

appropriate legal documents to ensure the right of public access whenever, and 
as, required by the certified land use plan and Section 17.46.010 (coastal access 
requirements); 

 

• No legal documents to ensure public access rights are required for the proposed 
project. 

 
6. Project complies with visitor-serving and recreational use policies; 

 
SEC. 30222 
The use of private lands suitable for visitor-serving commercial recreational 
facilities designed to enhance public opportunities for coastal recreation shall 
have priority over private residential, general industrial, or general commercial 
development, but not over agriculture or coastal-dependent industry. 

 

• The project involves first- and second-story additions on a residential lot of record. 
 

SEC. 30223 
Upland areas necessary to support coastal recreational uses shall be reserved for 
such uses, where feasible. 

 

• The project involves first- and second-story additions on a residential lot of record. 
 
c) Visitor-serving facilities that cannot be feasibly located in existing developed 
areas shall be located in existing isolated developments or at selected points of 
attraction for visitors. 
 

• The project involves first- and second-story additions on a residential lot of record. 
 

7. Project complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision of 
public and private parking, pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation 
and/or traffic improvements; 

 

5.A

Packet Pg. 63



 
 

 

• The project involves the construction of first- and second-story additions. The project 
complies with applicable standards and requirements for provision for parking, 
pedestrian access, alternate means of transportation, and/or traffic improvements. 

 
8. Review of project design, site plan, signing, lighting, landscaping, etc., by the 

city’s architectural and site review committee, and compliance with adopted 
design guidelines and standards, and review committee recommendations; 

 

• The project complies with the design guidelines and standards established by the 
Municipal Code. 

 
9. Project complies with LCP policies regarding protection of public landmarks, 

protection or provision of public views; and shall not block or detract from public 
views to and along Capitola’s shoreline; 

 

• The project will not negatively impact public landmarks and/or public views. The 
project will not block or detract from public views to and along Capitola’s shoreline. 

 
10. Demonstrated availability and adequacy of water and sewer services; 

 

• The project is located on a legal lot of record with available water and sewer 
services. 

 
11. Provisions of minimum water flow rates and fire response times; 

 

• The project is located 0.3 miles from the Central Fire Protection District Capitola 
Station. Water is available at the location. 

 
12. Project complies with water and energy conservation standards; 

 

• The project is for first- and second-story additions. The GHG emissions for the 
project are projected at less than significant impact. All water fixtures must comply 
with the low-flow standards of the Soquel Creek Water District. 

 
13. Provision of park dedication, school impact, and other fees as may be required; 

 

• The project will be required to pay appropriate fees prior to building permit issuance. 
 

14. Project complies with coastal housing policies, and applicable ordinances 
including condominium conversion and mobile home ordinances; 

 

• The project does not involve a condo conversion or mobile homes. 
 

15. Project complies with natural resource, habitat, and archaeological protection 
policies; 

 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with established 
policies. 

 
16. Project complies with Monarch butterfly habitat protection policies; 

 

5.A

Packet Pg. 64



 
 

 

• The project is outside of any identified sensitive habitats, specifically areas where 
Monarch Butterflies have been encountered, identified and documented. 

 
17. Project provides drainage and erosion and control measures to protect marine, 

stream, and wetland water quality from urban runoff and erosion; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure compliance with applicable 
erosion control measures. 

 
18. Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professional for 

projects in seismic areas, geologically unstable areas, or coastal bluffs, and 
project complies with hazard protection policies including provision of 
appropriate setbacks and mitigation measures; 

 

• Geologic/engineering reports have been prepared by qualified professionals for this 
project. Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project applicant 
shall comply with all applicable requirements of the most recent version of the 
California Building Standards Code. 

 
19. All other geological, flood and fire hazards are accounted for and mitigated in the 

project design; 
 

• Conditions of approval have been included to ensure the project complies with 
geological, flood, and fire hazards and are accounted for and will be mitigated in the 
project design. 

 
20. Project complies with shoreline structure policies; 

 

• The proposed project is not located along a shoreline. 
 

21. The uses proposed are consistent with the permitted or conditional uses of the 
zoning district in which the project is located; 

 

• This use is an allowed use consistent with the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) zoning 
district. 

 
22. Conformance to requirements of all other city ordinances, zoning requirements, 

and project review procedures; and 
 

• The project conforms to the requirements of all city ordinances, zoning requirements, 
and project development review and development procedures. 

 
23. Project complies with the Capitola parking permit program as follows: 

a. The village area preferential parking program areas and conditions as established in 
Resolution No. 2596 and no permit parking of any kind shall be allowed on Capitola 
Avenue. 

b. The neighborhood preferential parking program areas are as established in 
Resolution Numbers 2433 and 2510. 

c. The village area preferential parking program shall be limited to three hundred fifty 
permits. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 65



 
 

 

d. Neighborhood permit areas are only in force when the shuttle bus is operating except 
that: 
i. The Fanmar area (Resolution No. 2436) program may operate year-round, 

twenty-four hours a day on weekends, 
ii. The Burlingame, Cliff Avenue/Grand Avenue area (Resolution No. 2435) have 

year-round, twenty-four hour per day “no public parking.” 
e. Except as specifically allowed under the village parking program, no preferential 

residential parking may be allowed in the Cliff Drive parking areas. 
f. Six Depot Hill twenty-four minute “Vista” parking spaces (Resolution No. 2510) shall 

be provided as corrected in Exhibit A attached to the ordinance codified in this 
section and found on file in the office of the city clerk. 

g. A limit of fifty permits for the Pacific Cove parking lot may be issued to village permit 
holders and transient occupancy permit holders. 

h. No additional development in the village that intensifies use and requires additional 
parking shall be permitted. Changes in use that do not result in additional parking 
demand can be allowed and exceptions for onsite parking as allowed in the 
land use plan can be made. 

 

• The project site is not located within the area of the Capitola parking permit 
program. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 307 McCormick Avenue - Plan Set 
2. 307 McCormick Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown 
3. 307 McCormick Avenue - Color and Materials Information 

 
Prepared By: Sean Sesanto 

5.A

Packet Pg. 66



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



5.A.1

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
P

la
n

 S
et

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)



Existing Building Costs:

Existing Residence: 1147.5 square feet = 229,500.00$      
200.00$         square foot

Exisiting Garage: 0 square feet = -$                   
90.00$           square foot

Existing Deck: 268 square feet = 6,700.00$          
25.00$           square foot

236,200.00$      

188,960.00$      

New Construction Costs:

New Conditioned Space: 495 square feet = 99,000.00$        
200.00$         square foot

New Garage: 206 square feet = 18,540.00$        
90.00$           square foot

New deck/porch: 46 square feet = 1,150.00$          
25.00$           square foot

118,690.00$      

Remodel Costs: (50% of "new construction" costs)

Remodel Conditioned Space: 130 square feet = 13,000.00$        
100.00$         square foot

Remodel Garage: 0 square feet = -$                   
45.00$           square foot

Remodel Deck: 0 square feet = -$                   
12.50$           square foot

13,000.00$        

131,690.00$      

% of Existing Value 55.8%

CONSTRUCTION COST BREAKDOWN PER Section 17.72.070

Total Construction/Remodel Cost

307 McCormick

Total Existing Value:

80% of Total Existing Value

Total New Construction Value:

Total Remodel Value:

5.A.2

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 C

o
st

 B
re

ak
d

o
w

n
  (

30
7 

M
cC

o
rm

ic
k 

A
ve

n
u

e)



5.A.3

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

07
 M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e 

- 
C

o
lo

r 
an

d
 M

at
er

ia
ls

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

  (
30

7 
M

cC
o

rm
ic

k 
A

ve
n

u
e)


	Agenda Packet
	1. Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	2. Oral Communications
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	3. Approval of Minutes
	A. Minutes of Mar 4, 2021 7:00 PM
	Printout: Minutes of Mar 4, 2021 7:00 PM


	4. Consent Calendar
	A. 1400 47th Avenue
	Printout: 1400 47th Avenue
	1. 1400 47th Avenue - Full Plan Set - 03.04.2021
	2. 1400 47th Avenue - Color and Materials Information
	3. 1400 47th Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown

	B. 4850 Topaz Street
	Printout: 4850 Topaz Street
	1. 4850 Topaz Street - Plan Set
	2. 4850 Topaz Street - Construction Cost Breakdown
	3. 4850 Topaz Street - Color and Materials Information


	5. Public Hearings
	A. 307 McCormick Avenue
	Printout: 307 McCormick Avenue
	1. 307 McCormick Avenue - Plan Set
	2. 307 McCormick Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown
	3. 307 McCormick Avenue - Color and Materials Information


	6. Director's Report
	7. Commission Communications
	8. Adjournment

	Appendix
	3.A · Minutes of Mar 4, 2021 7:00 PM
	4.A · 1400 47th Avenue
	4.A.1 · 1400 47th Avenue - Full Plan Set - 03.04.2021
	4.A.2 · 1400 47th Avenue - Color and Materials Information
	4.A.3 · 1400 47th Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown

	4.B · 4850 Topaz Street
	4.B.1 · 4850 Topaz Street - Plan Set
	4.B.2 · 4850 Topaz Street - Construction Cost Breakdown
	4.B.3 · 4850 Topaz Street - Color and Materials Information

	5.A · 307 McCormick Avenue
	5.A.1 · 307 McCormick Avenue - Plan Set
	5.A.2 · 307 McCormick Avenue - Construction Cost Breakdown
	5.A.3 · 307 McCormick Avenue - Color and Materials Information



